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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

Xl QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2010
or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period to

Commission file number 0-15658

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Delaware 47-0210602
(State of Incorporatior (I.LR.S. Employe
Identification No.)
1025 Eldorado Blvd., Broomfield, CO 80021
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

(720) 888-1000
(Registrant’s telephone number,
including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities Excha

Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orgiech shorter period that the registrant was redquodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastie@s. YedX] NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&b site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of thiapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and post such filegsB NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting

company. See definitions of “large accelerated filaccelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting cpamy” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large accelerated fileX] Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated fileO Smaller reporting compan
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgje Act). Yefl No
The number of shares outstanding of each cladsedssuer's common stock, as of July 30, 2010:

Common Stockl,664,768,360 shares
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions, except per share data 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenue
Communication: $ 89z $ 92¢ $ 1,792 $ 1,88¢
Coal Mining 16 16 26 34
Total Revenut 90¢ 947 1,81¢ 1,92
Costs and Expenses (exclusive of depreciation arattzzation
shown separately below
Cost of Revenu
Communication: 35¢ 37¢ 72¢ 76¢
Coal Mining 16 16 28 33
Total Cost of Revenu 374 39t 757 802
Depreciation and Amortizatic 228 22¢ 44¢ 45(
Selling, General and Administrati 33¢ 321 681 65¢
Restructuring Charge 1 6 1 7
Total Costs and Expens 93€ 95C 1,881 1,91¢
Operating Income (Los! (28) (8 (69) 4
Other Income (Expense
Interest incom: — 1 — 2
Interest expens (14%) (152) (299) (29¢)
Gain (Loss) on extinguishments of debt, (5) 14 (59 14
Other, ne 9 12 16 14
Total Other Income (Expens (147) (125 (337) (26¢)
Loss Before Income Taxt (169 (1393 (40€) (269)
Income Tax Expens — €y @ @)
Net Loss $ (169 $ (134) $ (407) $ (26€)
Basic and Diluted Loss per She $ (0.10) $ (0.0¢) $ (0.25) $ (0.16)
Shares Used to Compute Basic and Dilt
1,660,00! 1,632,25 1,653,74. 1,626,58.

Loss per Share (in thousanc

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited)
June 30, December 31

(dollars in millions, expect par value) 2010 2009
Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivale $ 44z  $ 83€

Restricted cash and securit 1 3

Receivables, less allowances for doubtful accooh$i7 and $18, respective 31z 328

Other 101 97
Total Current Asset 85¢€ 1,25¢
Property, Plant and Equipment, | 5,37¢ 5,687
Restricted Cash and Securit 12C 122
Goodwill 1,42¢ 1,42¢
Other Intangibles, ne 41¢ 467
Other Assets, ne 10C 98
Total Assets $ 8,29¢ $ 9,062
Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 358 % 364

Current portion of lon-term debt 41 70%

Accrued payroll and employee bene 45 51

Accrued interes 144 14C

Current portion of deferred reven 14¢ 162

Other 63 97
Total Current Liabilities 79€ 1,51¢
Long-Term Debt, less current portit 6,22 5,75¢
Deferred Revenue, less current pori 717 74C
Other Liabilities 54k 557
Total Liabilities 8,281 8,571
Commitments and Contingenci
Stockholder Equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 100@@shares: no shares issued or outstar — —

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 2,9000@@shares: 1,661,809,392 issued and

outstanding at June 30, 2010 and 1,644,116,26Bdsand outstanding at December 31, 2 17 16

Additional paic-in capital 11,58¢ 11,531

Accumulated other comprehensive |i (122 (5)

Accumulated defici (11,469 (11,057
Total Stockholder Equity 15 491
Total Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity $ 8,29t $ 9,062

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited)
Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Cash Flows from Operating Activitie
Net loss $ (407 $ (26€)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 44¢ 45C
Non-cash compensation expense attributable to stockda 30 25
Loss (gain) on extinguishments of debt, 59 (14
Change in fair value of embedded deriva (20 —
Accretion of debt discount and amortization of debtiance cos 28 30
Accrued interest on lo-term deb! 4 15
Other, ne 2 (7)
Changes in working capital iterr
Receivable! 7 19
Other current asse 12 27
Payable: (5) (42
Deferred revenu (27 12
Other current liabilitie: (36) (99)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activiti 77 96
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Capital expenditure (18€) (15¢)
Decrease in restricted cash and securities 4 3
Net Cash Used in Investing Activitis (182 (15%)
Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance ci 613 272
Payments on and repurchases of -term debi (890 (359
Net Cash Used in Financing Activiti (277) (81)
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equi (12) 2
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival (399 (13¢)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Pe 83€ 76€
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Pe $ 44z  $ 63C
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informati
Cash interest pai $ 26z $ 252
Income taxes paid, net of refur $ 1 $ 4
Non-cash Investing and Financing Activitie
Long-term debt issued in exchange transact $ — $ 19€
Long-term debt retired in exchange transacti $ — 8 204

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

Level 3 Communications, Inc. and its subsidiarieeyel 3" or the “Company”) is a facilities basedopider (that is, a provider that
owns or leases a substantial portion of the pfaoperty and equipment necessary to provide itds) of a broad range of integrated
communications services. The Company has creaewihmunications network generally by constructisg@wn assets, but also through a
combination of purchasing and leasing from othenganies and facilities. The Company’s network isdwanced, international, facilities
based communications network. The Company desiga@atwork to provide communications services,chitémploy and take advantage of
rapidly improving underlying optical, Internet Poobl, computing and storage technologies.

The Company is also engaged in coal mining thratsgtwo 50% owned joint-venture surface mines, eaeh in Montana and
Wyoming.

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include ttomants of Level 3 Communications, Inc. and subsiés in which it has a
controlling interest, which are enterprises engagdte communications and coal mining businedsity-percent-owned mining joint
ventures are consolidated on a pro rata basisigiificant intercompany accounts and transactia® been eliminated.

As part of its consolidation policy, the Companwysialers its controlled subsidiaries, investmenth@business in which the
Company is not the primary beneficiary or doeshaste effective control but has the ability to sfgaintly influence operating and financial
policies, and variable interests resulting fromrexraic arrangements that give the Company righectmomic risks or rewards of a legal
entity. The Company does not have variable intefiesa variable interest entity (“VIE”) where & fequired to consolidate the entity as the
primary beneficiary or where it has concluded ndg the primary beneficiary. The Company woulddguired to consolidate entities in
which it owns less than a 100% equity intereshéf €ntity is a VIE, and the Company is deemed tthbgrimary beneficiary in the VIE
through having power over significant activitiestloé entity and having an obligation to absorbdsssr the right to receive benefits from the
VIE that are potentially significant to the VIE.h& identification of variable interests and thelgsia of whether the entity is a VIE requires
significant judgment in determining whether certairangements were designed to create or absadbildy, the nature of the risks in the
legal entity, and which investors and investmengscansidered at risk. Circumstances supportisgraptions that indicate whether an entity
has incentives or impediments to protect all opdipn of variable interest holders from absorbingignificant amount of variability may
change based on the activities between the variatgeest holders, the Company and other entitieslved with the VIE. Changes in events
or circumstances may be significant enough to mecibnsideration of consolidation under the VIE elod

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet asadber 31, 2009, which was derived from auditeainftial statements, and 1
unaudited interim consolidated financial statemestsf June 30, 2010 and for the three and six Inscgrided June 30, 2010 and 2009 have
been prepared pursuant to the rules and reguladiothe Securities and Exchange Commission (theC"$Eor quarterly reports on Form 10-
Q and do not include all of the information andendisclosures required by accounting principlesgaty accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”) for complete financial statementghese financial statements should be read irucatipn with the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements and notes thémetaded in the Company’s Annual Report on ForreKlfor the year ended December 31,
2009. In the opinion of the Company’s manageméese financial statements contain all adjustmetssjsting only of normal recurring
adjustments) necessary for a fair presentatiomahtial position, results of operations and cémlvg at the dates and for the interim periods
presented herein. The results of operations fant@nim period are not necessarily indicativehs tesults of operations expected for a full
fiscal year.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statiets in conformity with GAAP requires managemennike estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etassd liabilities, disclosure of contingent assetd liabilities and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reported periddaA@sults could differ from these estimates.
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Recently | ssued Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the FASB issued a new accountamgdsird that provides revenue recognition guiddmcarrangements with
multiple deliverables. Specifically, the new stamtaequires an entity to allocate consideratiothatinception of an arrangement to all of its
deliverables based on their relative selling priteshe absence of the vendor specific objectiidence or third party evidence of the selling
prices, consideration must be allocated to thevdedbles based on management’s best estimate séllirgy prices. In addition, the new
standard eliminates the use of the residual medatiocation. This guidance is generally expedtedesult in revenue recognition for more
delivered elements than under the current rulegelL® elected to adopt this guidance prospectif@aiyew or materially modified agreeme
as of January 1, 2010. The adoption of this guidahid not have a material effect on the Compangfssolidated results of operations or
financial condition.

(2) Loss Per Share

The Company computes basic net loss per shareviirdj net loss for the period by the weighted agernumber of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period. Dilutetlloss per share is computed by dividing net fosthe period by the weighted aver
number of shares of common stock outstanding duhiageriod and including the dilutive effect ohumon stock that would be issued
assuming conversion or exercise of outstanding exitke notes, stock options, stock based compiemsatvards and other dilutive securit
No such items were included in the computationiloted loss per share for the three and six moatfteed June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2
because the Company incurred a net loss in eaittesé periods and the effect of inclusion wouldehlagen anti-dilutive.

The effect of approximately 624 million and 545 Iioit shares issuable pursuant to the various sefiesnvertible notes outstandi
at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, haveewmt lncluded in the computation of diluted lossgieare because their inclusion would h
been antdilutive to the computation. In addition, the effe€ the approximately 39 million and 42 milliontperform stock options, restrict
stock units and warrants outstanding at June 300 20d 2009, respectively, have not been includede computation of diluted loss per
share because their inclusion would have beendintive to the computation.

(3) Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill dgithe six months ended June 30, 2010 are as flmmillions):

Coal
Communications Mining
Segment Segment Total
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 1,42¢ $ — 1,42¢
Effect of foreign currency rate chan (4) — (4)
Accumulated impairment loss — — —
Balance at June 30, 20 $ 1,428 $ —  $ 1,42¢

The Company conducted its annual goodwill impairnzeralysis at December 31, 2009, and concludegbitslwill was not
impaired. There were no events or changes inmistances during the first half of 2010 that indéckthe carrying value of goodwill may not
be recoverable.
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(4) Acquired Intangible Assets

Identifiable acquisition-related intangible assetf June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 welaw$ (in millions):

Gross
Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net
June 30, 201(
Finite-Lived Intangible Asset:
Customer Contracts and Relationst $ 74z $ (447 $ 29F
Patents and Developed Technolc 14C (68) 72
882 (51%) 367
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Asset:
Vyvx Trade Name 32 — 32
Wireless License 20 — 20
$ 934 $ (515) % 41¢
December 31, 2009
Finite-Lived Intangible Asset:
Customer Contracts and Relationst $ 74 % (407 % 33¢
Patents and Developed Technolc 141 (62) 79
884 (469) 41F
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Asset:
Vyvx Trade Name 32 — 32
Wireless License 20 — 20
$ 93¢ $ (469) $ 467

The gross carrying amount of identifiable acquisitrelated intangible assets in the table abosgeligect to change due to foreign
currency fluctuations, as a portion of the Compangeéntifiable acquisition-related intangible assae related to foreign subsidiaries.

Acquired finite-lived intangible asset amortizatiexpense was $23 million and $46 million for theethand six months ended
June 30, 2010 and $23 million and $46 million theed six months ended June 30, 2009.

As of June 30, 2010, estimated amortization expéarsthe Company’s finite-lived acquisition-relatedangible assets over the next
five years and thereafter is as follows (in milkdn

2010 (remaining six month $ 46
2011 91
2012 69
2013 51
2014 40
Thereafte 70

$ 367

(5) Restructuring and Contract Termination Costs

The Company has accrued contract termination cds88 million at June 30, 2010 and $42 milliorDetcember 31, 2009 for
facility lease costs, primarily in North Americaat the Company continues to incur without econdmeicefit. Accrued contract termination
costs are recorded in other liabilities (currerd ann-current) in the consolidated balance sh&éis.Company expects to pay the majority of
these costs through 2018. The Company did not iaaymew contract termination costs in the threathmended June 30, 2010 or in the
three and six months ended June 30, 2009. The Gonipeurred new contract termination costs of kass $1 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2010. The Company records chasgesritract termination costs, including accregapense, within selling, general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statésyd operations.
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(6) Fair Value

GAAP defines fair value as the price that would-deeived from selling an asset or paid to transfibility in an orderly transactit
between market participants at the measurement\déten determining the fair value measurementsssets and liabilities required to be
recorded at fair value, the Company considers timeipal or most advantageous market in which itlddransact and considers assumptions
that market participants would use when pricingabset or liability, such as inherent risk, transéstrictions, and risk of nonperformance.

The Company'’s financial instruments consist of casth cash equivalents, restricted cash and sexjr&ccounts receivable,
accounts payable, interest rate swaps and longdebnincluding the current portion as of JuneZ1,0 and December 31, 2009. The
Company also had embedded derivative contractaded in its financial position as of December 3102 The carrying values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash and securittesuats receivable and accounts payable approxihtiagér fair values at June 30, 2010 and
December 31, 2009. The interest rate swaps anddetelelerivative contracts are recorded in the daaded balance sheets at fair value.
The carrying value of the Company’s long-term detitluding the current portion, reflects the orgiamounts borrowed net of unamortized
discounts, premiums and debt discounts and wastiHlidh as of June 30, 2010 and $6.5 billion aPetember 31, 2009. The estimated fair
value of the Company’s long-term debt approxim&&® billion at June 30, 2010 and $6.3 billion &Bmber 31, 2009.

Restricted cash and securities consists primafiash and investments that serve to collateraligstanding letters of credit, long-
term debt and certain performance and operatinigativns of the Company, as well as cash and invests restricted to fund certain
reclamation liabilities of the Company. Restrictagh and securities are recorded in current orcuorent assets in the consolidated balance
sheets depending on the duration of the restri@imhthe purpose for which the restriction exists.

The cost and fair value of restricted cash andrigezutotaled $121 million at June 30, 2010 an@d%million at December 31, 2009.
Fair Value Hierarchy

GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that reggian entity to maximize the use of observabletshpnd minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.faltrevalue measurement of each class of assetBahilities is dependent upon its
categorization within the fair value hierarchy, dsipon the lowest level of input that is significto the fair value measurement of each
of asset and liability. GAAP establishes three et inputs that may be used to measure fair value

Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical &sse liabilities.

Level 2—Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices sgohumted prices for similar assets or liabilitiggpted prices in markets
with insufficient volume or infrequent transactigihsss active markets); or model-derived valuationshich all significant inputs are
observable or can be derived principally from araborated by observable market data for substintiee full term of the assets or
liabilities.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs to the valuation methodoldmt are significant to the measurement of fair @alfiassets or
liabilities.
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The table below presents the fair values for eda$sf Level 3’s liabilities measured on a reqgtbasis as well as the input levels
used to determine these fair values as of Jun2@®@M and December 31, 2009:

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted Prices Significant
Total in Active Other Significant
Carrying Value Markets for Observable Unobservable
in Consolidated Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Balance Sheet (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
June 30, December31 June 30, December31 June 30, December31 June 30, December 31
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

(dollars in millions)
Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value in tt
Financial Statements
Derivatives:
Interest Rate Swap Liabilities
(included in other non-current
liabilities) $ 11 $ 92 3 — $ — % 112 $ 2 3 — $ =
Embedded Derivatives in
Convertible Debt (included in
other nor-current liabilities) — 20 — — — 20 — —
Total Derivative Liabilities
Recorded at Fair Value in tt
Financial Statemen $ 11 $ 11z $ — $ — $ 112 $ 11z $ — $ —
Liabilities Not Recorded at Fair Value
the Financial Statement
Long-term Debt, including the current

portion:
Senior Note: $ 2,88 $ 280¢ $ 254 % 2,60¢ $ — $ — % — $ —
Convertible Note: 1,602 1,87: 48€ T7¢E 1,20 1,26 — —
Term Loans 1,67¢ 1,67¢ 1,53(C 1,577 — — — —
Commercial Mortgag 67 68 — — 76 75 — —
Other 31 32 — — 31 32 — —
Total Longterm Debt, including
the current portion $ 6,26¢ $ 6,46( $ 4,55¢ $ 496¢ $ 1,307 $ 1,37¢ $ — $ —
Derivatives

The interest rate swaps are measured in accoradticéhe Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurédamee using discounted
cash flow techniques that use observable marketsnguch as LIBOR-based forward yield curves, #vdwrates, and the specific swap rate
stated in each of the swap agreements. The embelddedtive contracts are priced using inputs #ratobservable in the market, such as the
Company’s stock price, risk-free interest rate atiebr contractual terms of certain of the Companypisvertible senior notes.

Senior Notes

The estimated fair value of the Company’s Seniole@pproximated $2.5 billion at June 30, 2010%h4 billion at December 31,
2009 based on market prices. The fair value of @&thument was obtained by discounting the expkctsh flows of such instrument usin
risk-adjusted discount rate. The significant irgoused to estimate the fair value of the Compa8gisior Notes included the June 30, 2010
and December 31, 2009 trading quotes as providddrhg financial institutions that trade in the Guany’s securities. The pricing quotes
provided by these market participants incorporpteads to the Treasury curve, security coupon (wiaages from LIBOR plus 3.75% to
10%), corporate and security credit ratings, matutate (ranging from 2014 to 2018) and liquidaynong other security characteristics and
relative value at both the borrower entity level @tross other securities of similar terms.

The Senior Notes are unsecured obligations of L8\hancing, Inc.; however, the Senior Notes ally find unconditionally
guaranteed by Level 3 Communications, Inc. and L8¥@ommunications, LLC, which is a first tier, wilyoowned subsidiary of Level 3
Financing, Inc.

Convertible Notes

The estimated fair value of the Company’s activedgled Convertible Notes approximated $486 miladdune 30, 2010 and $778
million at December 31, 2009. The fair value of @@mpany’s actively traded Convertible Notes usedttading quotes as of June 30, 2010
and December 31, 2009 provided by large finanagtitutions that trade in the Company’s securiti€be estimated fair value of the
Company’s Convertible Notes which are not activedyled, such as the 9% Convertible Senior Dischiotés due 2013, the 7% Convertible
Senior Notes due 2015, the 7% Convertible Senideddue 2015, Series B, and the 15% ConvertibleEShBiotes due 2013, approximated
$1.2 billion at June 30, 2010 and $1.267 billioatember 31, 2009. To estimate the fair valub®iConvertible Notes which are not
actively traded,

10
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Level 3 used a Black-Scholes valuation model anth@mme approach using discounted cash flows. mst significant inputs affecting the
valuation are the pricing quotes provided by theseket participants which incorporate spreads ¢oTiteasury curve, security coupon
(ranging from 7% to 15%), convertible optionalitprporate and security credit ratings, maturityedaanging from 2013 to 2015), liquidity,
and other equity option inputs, such as the risk-fiate, underlying stock price, strike price & #émbedded derivative, estimated volatility
and maturity inputs for the option component andlie bond component, among other security chaiatits and relative value at both the
borrower entity level and across other securitfesirilar terms. The fair value of each instrumisndbtained by adding together the value
derived by discounting the security’s coupon oeliast payment using a risk-adjusted discount radetlze value calculated from the
embedded equity option based on the estimatedilitylaf the Company’s stock price, conversion rafe¢he particular Convertible Note,
remaining time to maturity, and risk-free rate.

The Convertible Notes are unsecured obligationsegtl 3 Communications, Inc. No subsidiary of Le¥&€ommunications, Inc.
has provided a guarantee of the Convertible Notes.

Term Loans

The fair value of the Term Loans was approxima$dlyb billion and $1.6 billion at June 30, 2010 &etember 31, 2009,
respectively. The fair value of each loan is attdiby discounting the expected cash flows of é@sthument at a risk-adjusted discount rate
and incorporating LIBOR expectations. The sigificinputs used to estimate the fair value of tben@any’s Term Loans include the June
30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 trading quotesocasded by large financial institutions that tradethhe Company’s loans. The pricing
quotes provided by these market participants immare LIBOR curve expectations, interest spreadchvis LIBOR plus 2.25% for the $1.4
billion in aggregate principal value in Tranche Arfin Loan and LIBOR plus 8.5% for the $280 milliorafiche B Term Loan (aggregate
principal value), LIBOR floor (only applicable tbe¢ Tranche B Term Loan at 3.0% minimum), corpoaaig loan credit ratings, maturity di
(March 2014) and liquidity, among other loan chégestics and relative value across other instrusmefsimilar terms.

The Term Loans are secured by a pledge of theyemiiérests in certain domestic subsidiaries ofdl@/Financing, Inc. and 65% of
the equity interest in Level 3 Financing, Inc.’sn@dian subsidiary and liens on the assets of L&@bmmunications, Inc. and certain
domestic subsidiaries of Level 3 Financing, Ine.adldition, Level 3 Communications, Inc. and certégomestic subsidiaries of Level 3
Financing, Inc. have provided full and unconditibgaarantees of the obligations under the Term koan

Commercial Mortgage

The fair value of the Commercial Mortgage was apjpnately $76 million and $75 million at June 30,120and December 31, 2009,
respectively, as compared to the carrying amour$6® million and $68 million, respectively. The@@mercial Mortgage is not actively
traded and its fair value is estimated by managénming a valuation model based on an income appro@he significant inputs used to
estimate fair value of this debt instrument usirggodunted cash flows include the anticipated sclegldonortgage payments and observable
market yields on other actively traded debt of Emtharacteristics and collateral type.

The Commercial Mortgage is a secured obligatioH@fRealty, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of thentpany. HQ Realty, Inc.’s
obligations under the Commercial Mortgage are sgtby a first priority lien on the Company’s heaadears campus located at 1025
Eldorado Boulevard, Broomfield, Colorado 80021 aadain HQ Realty, Inc. cash and reserve accounts.

The assets of HQ Realty, Inc. are not availabkatesfy any third party obligations other than #ho$ HQ Realty, Inc. In addition,
the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries tthe HQ Realty, Inc. are not available to sattbfy obligations of HQ Realty, Inc.

(7) Derivative Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instrumeprisparily interest rate swaps, to manage its expogufluctuations in interest
rate movements. The Company'’s primary objectiveamaging interest rate risk is to decrease theiliglaf its earnings and cash flows
affected by changes in the underlying rates. Taeaetthis objective, the Company enters into finainderivatives, primarily interest rate
swap agreements, the values of which change iophesite direction of the anticipated future cdstv§. The Company has floating rate
long-term debt (see Note 8). These obligations sepbe Company to variability in interest paymehte to changes in interest rates. If
interest rates increase, interest expense incre@sasersely, if interest rates decrease, intengsénse also decreases. The Company has
designated its interest rate swap agreements hdloashedges. Swaps designated as cash flow hedgelse the receipt of variable-rate
amounts

11
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from a counterparty in exchange for the Companyingpfixed-rate payments over the lives of the agrests without exchange of the
underlying notional amount. The change in theValue of the interest rate swap agreements isctefien Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) (“AOCI”) and is subsatly reclassified into earnings in the period th&t hedged transaction affects
earnings, due to the fact that the interest ragpsagreements are designated as effective casihéidges. The Company does not use
derivative financial instruments for speculativepses.

On March 13, 2007, Level 3 Financing Inc., the Camps wholly owned subsidiary, entered into twaenesst rate swap agreements
to hedge the interest payments on $1 billion nafi@mount of floating rate debt. The two interegerswap agreements are with different
counterparties and are for $500 million each. Taadactions were effective beginning April 13, 2@@d mature on January 13, 2014. The
Company uses interest rate swaps to convert speeifiable rate debt issuances into fixed rate.delider the terms of the interest rate swap
transactions, the Company receives interest paysed on rolling three month LIBOR terms and patgsest at the fixed rate of 4.93%
under one arrangement and 4.92% under the other.Cobmpany evaluates the effectiveness of the Isealga quarterly basis. During the
periods presented, these derivatives were useedgeithe variable cash flows associated with exjsibligations. The Company recognizes
any ineffective portion of the change in fair vahfedhe hedged item in the consolidated statem&niperations. All components of the
interest rate swaps were included in the assessshéedge effectiveness. Hedge ineffectivenesthimCompany’s cash flow hedges was not
material in any period presented.

The Company also has certain equity conversiortgighsociated with debt instruments, which aredesignated as hedging
instruments, but are considered derivative instntmeCertain of these derivative instruments vedaissified as liabilities at December 31,
2009 due to a potential requirement to settle treversion rights in cash, and the conversion riglgie carried at fair value. As a result of
approval by the Company’s stockholders at the May2P10 annual meeting to increase the numbertbbaaed shares of Level 3 common
stock to 2.9 billion, the $16 million fair value tifese derivative instruments was reclassified $tdokholders’ equity as of May 20, 2010, as
the Company has sufficient authorized and unissoetmon stock available to settle all of the potrtonversion rights. The Company’s
primary objective associated with including suchwarsion rights in certain of its debt instrumeistto reduce the contractual interest rate
related current cash borrowing costs of the dedituments. The Company had recognized the gailzsses from changes in fair values of
these derivative instruments in other income (egpem the statements of operations. Gains frorsetlterivative instruments were $8 milli
and $10 million during the three and six month gegended June 30, 2010, respectively. The effastlass than $1 million during the three
and six month periods ended June 30, 2009.

The Company is exposed to credit related loss@®ievent of non-performance by counterparties.cthmterparties to any of the
financial derivatives the Company enters into asgominstitutions with investment grade creditmgs. The Company evaluates counterparty
credit risk before entering into any hedge trarieacind continues to closely monitor the finananarket and the risk that its counterparties
will default on their obligations. This credit risk generally limited to the unrealized gains iglsgontracts, should any of these counterps
fail to perform as contracted.

Amounts accumulated in AOCI related to derivatiges indirectly recognized in earnings as perioditiements occur throughout
the term of the swaps, when the related interggnhpats affect earnings. As of June 30, 2010, thmg2my had the following outstanding
interest rate derivatives that were designatedasls flow hedges of interest rate risk:

Number of Notional
Interest Rate Derivative Instruments (in Millions)
Interest rate sway Two $ 1,00¢
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The table below presents the fair value of the Camgjs derivative financial instruments as well lasit classification on the
consolidated balance sheets as follows (in millipns

Liability Derivatives

June 30, 201( December 31, 200!
Derivatives designated a: Balance Shee Fair Balance Shee Fair
hedging instruments Location Value Location Value
Cash flow hedging contrac Other noncurrent liabilitie $ 112 Other noncurrent liabilitie $ 92

Liability Derivatives

June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
Derivatives not designated a Balance Shee Fair Balance Shee Fair
hedging instruments Location Value Location Value
Embedded equity conversion rig| Other noncurrent liabilitie $ — Other noncurrent liabilitie $ 20

The amount of gains (losses) recognized in Othen@ehensive Income consists of the following (iMlions):

Derivatives designated as hedging instrumen 2010 2009
Cash flow hedging contrac
Three months ended June $ 13 $ 23
Six months ended June : $ (21) $ 8

The amount of gains (losses) reclassified from A@Jhcome/Loss (effective portions) consists @& tbllowing (in millions):

Derivatives designated as hedging instrumen Income Statement Locatior 2010 2009
Cash flow hedging contract
Three months ended June Interest Expens $ (1) $ 9
Six months ended June : Interest Expens $ 23) $ (%))

Changes in the fair value of interest rate swapsgdated as hedging instruments of the variabilftgash flows associated with
floating-rate, long-term debt obligations are répdiin AOCI. These amounts subsequently are refibsfto interest expense as a yield
adjustment of the hedged debt obligation in theespariod in which the related interest on the ftagrate debt obligations affects earnings.
Amounts currently included in AOCI will be reclafésd to earnings prior to the settlement of themehdlow hedging contracts in 2014. The
Company estimates that $43 million of net lossetherinterest rate swaps (based on the estima@@RIcurve as of June 30, 2010) will be
reclassified into earnings within the next twelvenths. The Company’s interest rate swap agreendestgnated as cash flow hedging
contracts qualify as effective hedge relationshéps] as a result, hedge ineffectiveness was nariakin any of the periods presented.

The effect of the Company’s derivatives not dedigtias hedging instruments on net (loss) is asvisli(in millions):

Derivatives not designated a Location of Gain Recognized ir
hedging instruments Income on Derivative 2010 2009
Embedded equity conversion righ
Three months ended June Other Income (Expens—Other, ne $ 8 $ —
Six months ended June Other Income (Expens—Other, ne $ 10 $ —
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(8) Long-Term Debt

As of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, long-tkbt was as follows:

June 30, December 31

(dollars in millions) 2010 2009
Senior Secured Term Loan due 2( $ 1,68 $ 1,68(
Senior Notes due 2011 (10.75 — 3
Senior Notes due 2013 (12.25 — 55C
Senior Notes due 2014 (9.25' 1,25C 1,25(
Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2015 (4.14% asmé 30, 2010 30C 30C
Senior Notes due 2017 (8.75' 70C 70C
Senior Notes due 2018 (10.0' 64C —
Convertible Senior Notes due 2010 (2.87¢ 38 40
Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 (5.2 19¢€ 19¢
Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 (10.( — 172
Convertible Senior Notes due 2012 (3.5 294 294
Convertible Senior Notes due 2013 (15.( 40C 40C
Convertible Senior Discount Notes due 2013 (9. 29t 29t
Convertible Senior Notes due 2015 (7.C 20C 20C
Convertible Senior Notes due 2015 Series B (7. 27¢ 27¢
Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2010 (6. — 111
Commercial Mortgage due 2015 (6.86 67 68
Capital Lease 31 32

Total Debt Obligation: 6,36¢ 6,56¢
Unamortized (Discount) Premiur
Discount on Senior Secured Term Loan due Z @ 2
Discount on Senior Notes due 2013 (12.2! — 2
Premium on Senior Notes due 2014 (9.2! 7 8
Discount on Senior Notes due 2018 (10.( (12 —
Discount on Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 &y (29 (38)
Discount on Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 (3. (38) (46)
Discount on Convertible Senior Notes due 2015 (3. 3 4
Discount due to embedded derivative contr (26) (25)

Total Unamortized (Discount) Premit (102) (109)
Carrying Value of Deb 6,26 6,46(

Less current portio (41) (705)
Long-term Debt, less current porti $ 6.22: $ 5,75¢

2010 Debt I ssuance - 10% Senior Notes Due 2018

On January 20, 2010, Level 3 Financing, Inc. issk@&D million in aggregate principal amount ofli&% Senior Notes due 2018
(the “10% Senior Notes”) in a private offering. Tinet proceeds from the issuance of the 10% SerotedNvere $613 million after deducting
discount and debt issuance costs and were useddd_fvel 3 Financing, Inc.’s purchase of its 12625enior Notes due 2013 (the “12.25%
Senior Notes”)n a concurrent tender offer and consent solidgtatThe net discount of approximately $13 millisrréflected as a reduction
long-term debt and is being amortized as intergstrese over the term of the 10% Senior Notes ubiagffective interest method. The 10%
Senior Notes will mature on February 1, 2018 amdgararanteed by Level 3 Communications, Inc. anegtL® Communications, LLC.
Interest on the notes accrues at 10% per yearsgmalyable on February 1 and August 1 of each peainning August 1, 2010.

Debt issue costs of approximately $14 million weapitalized and are being amortized over the terthen10% Senior Notes.

The offering of the 10% Senior Notes was not oaffinregistered under the Securities Act of 1933amended, and included a
registration rights agreement. In June 2010, fahe originally placed notes were exchanged foew issue of 10% Senior Notes due 2018
with identical terms and conditions, other tharstheelated to registration rights, in a registenechange offer and are now freely tradable.
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2010 Tender Offer

On January 5, 2010, Level 3 Financing, Inc. comradrectender offer to purchase for cash any amaf &tle outstanding $550
million aggregate principal amount of its 12.25%i®e Notes for a price equal to $1,080.00 per $Q fncipal amount of the notes, which
included $1,050.00 as the tender offer considaratiad $30.00 as a consent payment (the “12.25%¢€Fedifer”). In connection with the
12.25% Tender Offer, Level 3 and Level 3 Financing, solicited consents to certain proposed amemdsrto the indenture governing the
12.25% Senior Notes to eliminate substantiallypfthe covenants, certain repurchase rights artdinezvents of default and related
provisions contained in the indenture.

In January 2010, holders of the 12.25% Senior Nogsesenting approximately 99.4% of the aggregateipal amount of the
outstanding 12.25% Senior Notes, participated éntémder offer. At the expiration of the tendeeofhn February 2, 2010, an aggregate
principal amount of $546,912,000 notes had beetetedl.

In connection with the 12.25% Tender Offer and emmsolicitation, on January 20, 2010, Level 3 Raiag, Inc. entered into a
supplemental indenture, among Level 3, Level 3 gy, Inc., Level 3 Communications, LLC and ThenBaf New York Mellon, as
Trustee (the “Supplemental Indenture”) to effeet #mendments to the indenture relating to the 22.86nior Notes. On March 15, 2010, the
Company redeemed in full the remaining $3 milliggieegate principal of the 12.25% Senior Notes,rad@mption price equal to 106.125%
of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued amglid interest.

The Company recognized a loss associated with2t#s% Tender Offer of approximately $55 million.
2010 Debt Repayments and Repurchases

In the second quarter of 2010, the Company redeeatheflthe outstanding $172 million aggregate pipal amount of its 10%
Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 for a price etu&ll,016.70 per $1,000 principal amount of thees@lus accrued and unpaid interest up
to, but not including the redemption date. The @any used cash on hand to fund the redemptioreskthotes, and recognized a loss on
extinguishment of approximately $4 million.

In the first quarter of 2010, the Company repaidl Iillion aggregate principal amount of its 6% €enible Subordinated Notes
due 2010 that matured on March 15, 2010. In afdifin various transactions during the first quaofe2010, the Company repurchased $3
million in aggregate principal amount of 5.25% Certible Senior Notes due 2011, the remaining $3anibf its 10.75% Senior Notes due
2011, and $2 million aggregate principal amour®.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 2010. Repsehavere made at prices to par
ranging from 95% to 100%, and the Company recoghdzeet loss on these repurchases of less thanllginm

2009 Debt Exchange

During the second quarter of 2009, the Company axgbd approximately $142 million aggregate prinicgmaount of the
Company'’s 6% Convertible Subordinated Notes du®201l approximately $140 million aggregate princgraount of its 2.875%
Convertible Senior Notes due 2010 for $200 milkgygregate principal amount of the Company’s 7% @drble Senior Notes due 2015
(“7% Notes”) and $78 million in cash, plus accrad unpaid interest. The Company recognized gaietof approximately $7 million on
the exchange transaction, after deducting $1 miiliounamortized debt issuance costs.

2009 Debt Repurchases
In the second quarter of 2009, the Company repsszhapproximately $301 million aggregate princgrabunt of various issues of
its convertible debt at discounts to the princgralount and recognized a net gain on extinguishofetiébt of approximately $7 million. The
gain consisted of a $33 million cash gain, whiclspartially offset by $20 million of unamortizeddeliscount, $1 million in unamortized
debt issuance costs and a $5 million increaseudyefpr the fair value allocated to the equity quonent of the convertible debt upon
extinguishment.
The second quarter 2009 debt repurchases consistied following:
*  $121 million aggregate principal amount of 6% Catibée Subordinated Notes due 2009;
*  $47 million aggregate principal amount of 6% Cotitsée Subordinated Notes due 2010;
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*  $3 million aggregate principal amount of 2.875% @artible Senior Notes due 2010;
*  $75 million aggregate principal amount of 5.25% @amtible Senior Notes due 2011;
*  $31 million aggregate principal amount of 10% Catibsée Senior Notes due 2011; and
*  $24 million aggregate principal amount of 3.5% Centible Senior Notes due 2012.
2009 Debt Redemption

The Company redeemed the remaining $13 millioneggte principal amount of its 11.5% Senior Notes 2010 at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount in the second quat@009.

In the first quarter of 2009, the Company repureda®5 million aggregate principal amount of its 64nvertible Subordinated
Notes due 2009 and $1 million aggregate principadant of its 11.5% Senior Notes due 2010 at distotmthe principal amounts a
recognized a net gain on extinguishment of less $iamillion.
Debt Maturities

Aggregate future maturities of lorigrm debt and capital leases (excluding debt distsopremiums and fair value adjustments) v
as follows as of June 30, 2010 (in millions):

2010 (remaining six month $ 39
2011 19¢
2012 29¢
2013 69¢
2014 2,93¢
Thereafte 2,19¢

$ 6,36¢

(9) Stock-Based Compensation

The following table summarizes non-cash compensa&tipense and capitalized non-cash compensatighddhree and six months
ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 (in millions):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009

0SO $ 3 3 19 6 $ 2
Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock U 2 5 8 13
401(k) Match Expens 4 3 6 10
Restricted Stock Unit Bonus Gre 5 — 10 —
14 9 30 25
Capitalized Noncash Compensat — — — —
$ 14 $ 9 3% 30 $ 25

The Company capitalizes naash compensation for those employees directlyimedoin the construction of the network, instabat
of services for customers or development of busisegport systems. As of June 30, 2010, there amyeoximately 16 million outperform
stock option (“OSO”units outstanding, of which approximately 2 millivere exercisable. As of June 30, 2010, there wppeoximately 2
million nonvested restricted stock and restrictidls units (“RSUs”) outstanding.

During the first quarter of 2010, the Company redishe eligibility criteria and grant schedule itsrnon-cash compensation.
Effective April 1, 2010, the Company’s OSOs will tpanted quarterly to certain levels of managemandtits RSUs will be granted annually
on July 1 to certain other eligible employees. réhgere no changes to the vesting schedule, oothiey aspects of the non-cash
compensation plans.
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(10) Comprehensive Loss

The components of total comprehensive loss, nebafs, were as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Net loss $ 169 $ (139 $ 407 $ (26€)
Change in cumulative translation adjustm (49 55 (96) 21
Change in unrealized holding gain (loss) on interas swap: (13 23 (22) 8
Other, ne — — — (1)
Comprehensive los $ (23) $ (56) $ (529 $ (23¢)

The components of accumulated other comprehens$g het of taxes, were as follows (in millions):

June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
Cumulative translation adjustme $ 37 $ 138
Accumulated net unrealized holding gain (loss)rderiest rate sway (113 (92
Other, ne (46) (46)
Accumulated other comprehensive | $ (122) $ ®

(11) Segment Information

Accounting guidance for the disclosures about segsnaf an enterprise defines operating segmenteraponents of an enterprise
for which separate financial information is avaialnd which is evaluated regularly by the Compsauyiief operating decision maker, or
decision making group, in deciding how to allocagources and assess performance. The Companya&iogesegments are managed
separately and represent separate strategic bsisinés that offer different products or serviced aerve different markets. The Company’s
reportable segments include: communications androiméng (see Note 1). Other business interestschvare not reportable segments,
include corporate assets and overhead costs ghabaattributable to a specific segment.

The Company evaluates performance based upon A&djERBITDA, as defined by the Company, as net incoss) from the
consolidated statements of operations before e tax benefit (expense), (2) total other incéexpense), (3) non-cash impairment
charges included within restructuring and impairtredrarges, (4) depreciation and amortization afeh@B-cash stock compensation expense
included within selling, general and administratespenses on the consolidated statements of opesati

Segment information for the Company’s Communicatiand Coal Mining businesses is summarized asafsl{@ millions):

Three Months Ended June 30 Six Months Ended June 30
2010 2009 2010 2009

Revenue from external custome
Communication: $ 89z $% 92¢ $ 1,792 $ 1,88¢
Coal Mining 16 16 26 34

$ 90 $ 94z $ 1,81¢ $ 1,92
Adjusted EBITDA
Communication: $ 20 % 23C % 411 % 47¢
Coal Mining $ — 3 — 3 2 $ 1
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Communications revenue consists of:

1) Core Network Services includes revenue from trarispdrastructure, data, and local and enterpri@ee communications
services.

2) Wholesale Voice Services includes revenue from listance voice services, including domestic végcmination,
international voice termination and toll free sees.

3) Other Communications Services includes revenue framaged modem and its related reciprocal compenssgrvices and
SBC Contract Services, which includes revenue fileenrSBC Master Services Agreement, which was obthiin the December
2005 acquisition of WilTel.

Communications revenue attributable to each ofetlsesvices is as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended June 30 Six Months Ended June 30
2010 2009 2010 2009
Communications Service
Core Network Services Reven $ 69¢ $ 70€ $ 1,40C $ 1,43¢
Wholesale Voice Services Rever 163 171 32¢€ 342
Other Communications Reven 30 49 64 112
Total Communications Reven $ 89z $ 92¢ $ 1,792 $ 1,88¢

The following information provides a reconciliatiohnet loss to Adjusted EBITDA by operating segimes defined by the
Company, for the three and six months ended Jun2@® and 2009 (in millions):

Three Months Ended June 30, 2010

Coal

Communications Mining
Net loss $ (167 $ Q)
Income tax expens — —
Total other (income) expen 14C —
Depreciation and amortization expel 222 1
Non-cash compensation exper 14 —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 20 $ —
Total Net Loss for reportable segme $ (16€)
Unallocated corporate exper (1)
Consolidated Net Los $ (169)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2010

Coal

Communications Mining
Net loss $ (402) $ (3)
Income tax expens 1 —
Total other (income) expen 33€ @
Depreciation and amortization expel 44¢€ 2
Non-cash compensation exper 30 —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 411 % 2
Total Net Loss for reportable segme $ (405)
Unallocated corporate exper (2
Consolidated Net Los $ (407)
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2009

Coal

Communications Mining
Net loss $ (137 $ 14
Income tax expens 1 —
Total other (income) expen 13C (15)
Depreciation and amortization expel 227 1
Non-cash compensation exper 9 —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 23C $ —
Total Net Loss for reportable segme $ (1239
Unallocated corporate exper (112)
Consolidated Net Los $ 134

Six Months Ended June 30, 2009

Coal

Communications Mining
Net loss $ 270) $ 14
Income tax expens 2 —
Total other (income) expen 274 (15)
Depreciation and amortization expel 44¢ 2
Non-cash compensation exper 25 —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 47¢ % 1
Total Net Loss for reportable segme $ (25€)
Unallocated corporate exper (10)
Consolidated Net Los $ (26€)

(12) Commitments, Contingencies and Other Items

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries (thmriganies™jare parties to a number of purported class aciasuits involving the
companies’ right to install fiber optic cable netWwin railroad right-of-ways adjacent to plaintiffand. The only lawsuit in which a class has
been certified against the companies occurrd¢biyle, et. al. v. Level 3 Communications, Inc.akt.a purported two state class action filel
the U.S. District Court for the District of Idahlo. November of 2005, the court granted class g¢eatibn only for the state of Idaho. The
companies have defeated motions for class cettiiitan a number of these actions but expect thanfiffs in the pending lawsuits will
continue to seek certification of statewide or rinsiifite classes. In general, the companies obtdlireedghts to construct their networks from
railroads, utilities, and others, and have insthiteeir networks along the rights-of-way so grantéldintiffs in the purported class actions
assert that they are the owners of lands over wthieltompanies’ fiber optic cable networks pasd,taat the railroads, utilities, and others
who granted the companies the right to construdtraaintain their networks did not have the legdharity to do so. The complaints seek
damages on theories of trespass, unjust enrichamehslander of title and property, as well as pumilamages. The companies have also
received, and may in the future receive, claimsa@amands related to rights-of-way issues simildh&issues in these cases that may be
based on similar or different legal theories.

The companies negotiated a series of class setitsraéfecting all persons who own or owned lanck h@r near railroad rights of
way in which the companies have their fiber optible network. The United States District Courttfog District of Massachusetts in
Kingsborough v. Sprint Communications Co. lgranted preliminary approval of the proposed settlet; however, on September 10, 2009,
the court denied a motion for final approval of #ettlement on the basis that the court lackedestibjatter jurisdiction and dismissed the
case.

It is still too early for the Company to reach acloision as to the ultimate outcome of these astiblowever, management believes
that the companies have substantial defenses wdimes asserted in all of these actions (and anifas claims which may be named in the
future), and intends to defend them vigorously satisfactory settlement is not ultimately negeiiband approved. Additionally, management
believes that any resulting liabilities for thestiens, beyond amounts reserved, will not matsriaffect the Compang’financial condition ¢
future results of operations, but could affect fataash flows.
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In February 2009, Level 3 Communications, Inc.taiarof its current officers and a former officeen® named as defendants in
purported class action lawsuits filed in the Unigdtes District Court for the District of Coloradehich have been consolidated as In re
Level 3 Communications, Inc. Securities Litigal(Civil Case No. 09-cv-00200-PAB-CBS). The Plairtifi each complaint allege, in
general, that throughout the purported class pespeetified in the complaint that the defendantedaio disclose material adverse facts about
the Company’s integration activities, business eperations. The complaints seek damages basedrparfad violations of Section 10(b) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, SecuritiesExaxhange Commission Rule 10b-5 promulgated thelemuand Section 20(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. On May 4, 2008,Glourt appointed a lead plaintiff in the case, amdune 29, 2009, the lead plaintiff fil
a Consolidated Class Action Complaint (the “Comutlai A motion to dismiss the Complaint was filed the Company and the other named
defendants. While the motion to dismiss the Complaas pending, the court granted the lead pfistinotion to further amend the
Complaint (the “Amended Compliant”)Thereafter, the Company and the other defendamedan the Amended Complaint filed a motio
dismiss the Amended Complaint with prejudice, whihending before the court.

It remains too early for the Company to reach ackgion as to the ultimate outcome of these actibliosvever, management
believes that the Company has substantial deféaadbe claims asserted in all of these actions @amdsimilar claims which may be namec
the future) and intends to defend these actionsroigsly.

During March 2009, Level 3 Communications, Inc.aasominal defendant, certain of its directors @&mdurrent officers, and a
former officer, were named as defendants in puegbstockholder derivative actions in the Districu@, Broomfield County, Colorado,
which have been consolidated as Iihesel 3 Communications, Inc. Derivative Litigatidread Case No. 2009CV59PDn December 11,
2009, Level 3 Communications, Inc., as a nomin&migant, certain of its directors and current @ffs; and a former officer, were named as
defendants in purported stockholder derivativeoacitn the United States District Court for the Bigtof Colorado inron Workers District
Council Of Tennessee Valley & Vicinity Pension Rlahevel 3 Communications, Inc., et.(@Civil Case No. 09¢cv02914)he Plaintiffs
allege that during the period specified in the claimps the named defendants failed to disclose madtedverse facts about the Company’s
integration activities, business and operationg ddmplaints seek damages on behalf of the Comipasgd on purported breaches of
fiduciary duties for disseminating false and midiag statements and failing to maintain internaitools; unjust enrichment; abuse of cont
gross mismanagement; waste of corporate assetswihdespect to certain defendants, breach afciigy duties in connection with the
resignation of Kevin O’Hara. The parties have adreea temporary stay of all activities in thesgams pending the outcome of the motion to
dismiss or other relevant time periods in the s&esrlitigation described above.

It remains too early for the Company to reach ackmion as to the ultimate outcome of these dexigactions. However,
management believes that the complaints have nwseficiencies including that each plaintiff failes make a demand on the Company’s
Board of Directors before filing the suit.

In March 2009, late April 2009 and early May 2008yel 3 Communications, Inc., the Level 3 Commuti@es, Inc. 401(k) Plan
Committee and certain current and former officerd directors of Level 3 Communications, Inc. weagned as defendants in purported class
action lawsuits filed in the U.S. District Court filie District of Colorado. These cases have beesdlidated a®Valter v. Level 3
Communications, Inc., et. a{.Civil Case No. 09¢cv00658)The complaint alleges breaches of fiduciary an@émthuties under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”) with regppéo investments in the Company’s common stock hrelndividual participant
accounts in the Level 3 Communications, Inc. 40B(kn. The complaint claims that those investmesti® imprudent for reasons that are
similar to those alleged in the securities andvdgiie actions described above.

It remains too early for the Company to reach ackion as to the ultimate outcome of these ERI8®#0Rs. However, management
believes that the Company has substantial deféaagbe claims asserted in all of these actions @amdsimilar claims which may be namec
the future) and intends to defend these actionsroigsly.

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties toyrotirer legal proceedings. Management believesatimaresulting liabilities for
these legal proceedings, beyond amounts resenikaoivmaterially affect the Company’s financialradition or future results of operations,
but could affect future cash flows.

Letters of Credi

It is customary in Level 3's industries to use was financial instruments in the normal courseusibess. These instruments include
letters of credit. Letters of credit are conditiboemmitments issued on behalf of Level 3 in acao® with specified terms and conditions.
As of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, Leheld3outstanding letters of credit of approxima&23 million and $25 million,
respectively, which are collateralized by cash,ohtis reflected on the consolidated balance slasetsstricted cash. The Company does not
believe it is reasonable to estimate the fair valuthe letters of credit and does not believe sxpe to loss is reasonably possible nor
material.
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(13) Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

Level 3 Financing, Inc. (Level 3 Financing), a wizalwned subsidiary of the Company, has issued.€hé5% Senior Notes (fully
redeemed in January 2010), Floating Rate Seniogs\diie 2011 (fully redeemed in November 2009),5P2.Senior Notes due 2013 (fully
redeemed in March 2010), 9.25% Senior Notes dud,2075% Senior Notes due 2017, 10% Senior Note20d8, and the Floating Rate
Senior Notes due 2015, (collectively, the “Seniatds$”) that are unsecured obligations of Levelr&Rting; however, they are also jointly
and severally and fully and unconditionally guaesat on an unsecured senior basis by Level 3 Conuaiomis, Inc. and Level 3
Communications, LLC.

In conjunction with the registration of the Seniwotes, the accompanying condensed consolidatirgdial information has been
prepared and presented pursuant to SEC RegulatioR@e 3-10 “Financial statements of guarantord affiliates whose securities
collateralize an issue registered or being regstérLevel 3 Financing 12.25% Senior Notes due 2013, Floating Rate E&lutes due 201
and 9.25% Senior Notes due 2014 are also jointlysmverally and fully and unconditionally guarantéy Broadwing Financial
Services, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Le¥&ommunications, Inc. As a result of this guarantee Company has included Broadw
Financial Services, Inc. in the condensed constitigdinancial information below for the periodefn January 1, 2009 through Decembel
2009 when the Company merged Broadwing Financiali&ss, Inc. with and into Level 3 Communicatiorisd. In the Condensed
Consolidating Balance Sheets for the year ende@mber 31, 2009, Broadwing Financial Services, imdicluded in Level 3
Communications, LLC.

The operating activities of the separate legakiestincluded in the Company’s consolidated finahstatements are interdependent.
The accompanying condensed consolidating finamtiatmation presents the results of operationsrfaial position and cash flows of each
legal entity and, on an aggregate basis, the oibverguarantor subsidiaries based on amounts ircbyresuch entities, and is not intended to
present the operating results of those legal estin a standtone basis. Level 3 Communications, LLC leasegpaaent and certain facilitie
from other wholly owned subsidiaries of Level 3 Gommications, Inc. These transactions are eliminatdéke consolidated results of the
Company.

The Condensed Consolidating Statements of Opesatiwrthe three and six months ended June 30, B80S been reclassified to
reflect the merger of an Other Non-Guarantor Suasidnto Level 3 Communications, LLC as of Decem®g, 2008. This change did not
have any effect on the Level 3 Consolidated Bal&toeet as of December 31, 2009.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the three months ended June 30, 2010

(unaudited)
Other
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Non-
Communications, Financing, Communications, Guarantor
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
Revenue $ — $ — $ 501 $ 462 $ (55 % 90¢
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu — — 197 22¢ (52 374
Depreciation and Amortizatic — — 11C 11z — 228
Selling, General and Administrati — — 294 47 (©)] 33¢
Restructuring Charge — — — 1 — 1
Total Costs and Expens — — 601 39C (55) 93€
Operating (Loss) Incom — — (100 72 — (28)
Other Income (Expense
Interest incomi — — — — — —
Interest expens (49 (99 — 2 — (14%)
Interest income (expense) affiliates, 201 32¢ (480) (49 — —
Equity in net earnings (losses) of
subsidiaries (325) (55¢) 43 — 84C —
Other, ne 4 (1) (6) 7 — 4
Other Income (Expens: (169 (325) (443%) (44) 84( (147)
(Loss) Income Before Income Tax (169) (325) (549 28 84C (169)
Income Tax Expens — — (1) 1 — —
Net (Loss) Incom: $ (169 $ (329 $ (549 $ 29 $ 84C $ (169

21




Table of Contents

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the six months ended June 30, 2010

(unaudited)
Other
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Non-
Communications, Financing, Communications, Guarantor
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
Revenue $ — $ — $ 99C $ 94C $ (112  1,81¢
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu — — 39¢€ 467 (10€) 757
Depreciation and Amortizatic — — 21¢ 23C — 44¢
Selling, General and Administrati 1 — 58¢ 98 (6) 681
Restructuring Charge — — — 1 — 1
Total Costs and Expens 1 — 1,202 79€ (112 1,88
Operating (Loss) Incom 1) — (212) 144 — (69)
Other Income (Expense
Interest incom: — — — — — —
Interest expens (207 (18¢) — (5) — (299
Interest income (expense) affiliates, 39¢ 64¢ (935) (112 — —
Equity in net earnings (losses) of
subsidiaries (709 (1,115 87 — 1,737 —
Other, ne 6 (55) (6) 12 — (43)
Other Income (Expens: (406 (709 (859) (10%) 1,737 (337)
(Loss) Income Before Income Tax (407) (709 (1,06¢) 39 1,737 (40€)
Income Tax Expens — — (1) — — (1)
Net (Loss) Incomi $ (407 % (709 $ (1,067 $ 39 8% 1,737 $ (407
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the three months ended June 30, 2009

(unaudited)
Broadwing
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Financial Other
Communications, Financing, Communications, Services, Non-Guarantor
Inc. Inc. LLC Inc. Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
Revenue $ — $ — $ 371 $ — $ 63z $ 61 $ 94z
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu — — 192 — 26C (58) 39t
Depreciation and
Amortization — — 104 — 124 — 22¢
Selling, General and
Administrative 1 — 264 59 3) 321
Restructuring Charge — — 6 — — — 6
Total Costs an
Expense: 1 — 567 — 44% (61) 95C
Operating (Loss) Incom 1) — (19¢€) — 18¢ — 8)
Other Income (Expense
Interest income — — — — 1 — 1
Interest expens (55) (949) — (2) 2 — (152)
Interest income (expen:
affiliates, net 19¢ 30z (510 — 9 — —
Equity in net earnings
(losses) of subsidiarit (30€) (514) 103 — — 717 —
Other, ne 29 — 2 — (5) — 26
Other Income
(Expense (1393 (30€) (405) (1) 3 717 (125)
(Loss) Loss Before Income
Taxes (134) (30€) (601) (1) 192 717 (139)
Income Tax Expens — — — — (1) — (1)
Net (Loss) Incom $ (134 $ (306) $ (601) $ @ $ 191 $ 717 $ (134
Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations
For the six months ended June 30, 2009
(unaudited)
Broadwing Other
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Financial Non-
Communications, Financing, Communications, Services, Guarantor
Inc. Inc. LLC Inc. Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
Revenue $ — 3 — 3 77C $ — 3 1,27 $ (129 % 1,922
Costs and Expense
Cost of Revenu — — 38C — 53¢ (117) 802
Depreciation and
Amortization — — 20t — 24k — 45C
Selling, General and
Administrative 1 — 54k 11¢ (6) 65¢
Restructuring Charge — — 7 — — — 7
Total Costs and Expens 1 — 1,137 — 903 (123 1,91¢
Operating (Loss) Incom 1) — (367) — 372 — 4
Other Income (Expense
Interest income — — 1 — 1 — 2
Interest expens (110 (182 1) 1) 4) — (29¢)
Interest income (expense)
affiliates, net 40€ 602 (1,019 — 6 — —
Equity in net earnings
(losses) of subsidiarie (590 (1,010 214 — — 1,38¢ —
Other, ne 29 — 3 — (4) — 28
Other Income (Expens (265) (590 (797) (1) (1) 1,38¢ (26€)
(Loss) Income Before Income
Taxes (26€) (590 (1,169 (@) 371 1,38¢ (264)
Income Tax Expens — — — — (2 — (2
Net (Loss) Incomt $ (26€) $ (590 $ (1,169 $ D% 36€ $ 1,38¢ $ (26€)
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Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cash and securit
Receivable, ne
Due from (to) affiliates
Other
Total Current Asset
Property, Plant and Equipment, |
Restricted Cash and Securit
Goodwill and Other Intangibles, n
Investment in Subsidiarie
Other Assets, n¢
Total Assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
(Deficit)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accrued payroll and employee bene
Accrued interes
Current portion of deferred reven
Other
Total Current Liabilities

Commitments and Contingenci

Long-Term Debt, less current portis

Deferred Revenue, less current pori

Other Liabilities

Stockholder Equity (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equit
(Deficit)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
June 30, 2010

(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Other
Communications, Financing, Communications, Non-Guarantor
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
13 7% 34¢€ $ 86 $ — $ 442
— — 1 — — 1
— — 74 23¢ — 312
11,61( 10,95¢ (25,159 2,59( — —
3 10 55 33 — 101
11,61¢ 10,97¢ (24,68)) 2,947 — 85€
— — 3,017 2,35¢ — 5,37¢
18 — 22 80 — 12C
— — 574 1,27( — 1,844
(9,967 (16,235 3,447 — 22,75: —
6 71 7 16 10C
1,677 $ (5,189 $ (17,619 $ 6,67z $ 22,751 $  8,29¢
13 — $ 10€ $ 24¢€ $ — $ 35E
38 — 2 1 — 41
— — 41 4 — 45
44 10C — — — 144
— — 10€& 40 — 14¢&
— 1 60 2 — 63
83 101 317 29t — 79¢€
1,564 4,564 25 70 — 6,22:
— — 653 64 — 717
15 118 154 263 — 54t
15 (9,966 (18,767 5,98( 22,75 15
1677 $ (5189 % (17,619 $ 6,67: $ 22,75: $  8,29¢
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Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cash and securit
Receivable, ne
Due from (to) affiliates
Other
Total Current Asset
Property, Plant and Equipment,
net
Restricted Cash and Securit
Goodwill and Other Intangibles,
net
Investment in Subsidiarie
Other Assets, ne¢
Total Assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’
Equity (Deficit)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Current portion of long-term
debt
Accrued payroll and employe
benefits
Accrued interes
Current portion of deferred
revenue
Other
Total Current Liabilities

Commitments and Contingenci

Long-Term Debt, less current
portion

Deferred Revenue, less current
portion

Other Liabilities

Stockholder Equity (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and
Stockholder’ Equity (Deficit)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

December 31, 2009
(unaudited)
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Other
Communications, Financing, Communications, Non-Guarantor
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
$ 23¢ % 8 $ 431 $ 161 $ — $ 83¢€
— — 1 2 — 3
— — 77 24¢ — 32%
11,40¢ 10,39 (24,06¢) 2,26 — —
3 16 43 35 — 97
11,64: 10,42: (23,51¢ 2,711 — 1,25¢
— — 3,11¢ 2,56¢ — 5,681
18 — 23 81 — 122
— — 56€ 1,33( — 1,89¢
(9,227) (15,037 3,28¢ — 20,97: —
7 63 15 13 — 98
$ 2,44¢ $ (4,559 $ (16,50 $ 6,701 $ 20,977 $ 9,062
$ 1 % — 3 13¢ $ 227 % — $ 364
151 551 2 1 — 70&
— — 46 5 — 51
47 92 — 1 — 14C
— — 11€ 46 — 162
— 1 61 35 — 97
19¢ 644 361 31t — 1,51¢
1,722 3,93¢ 26 71 — 5,75¢
— — 662 78 — 74C
34 93 15€ 274 — 557
491 (9,226 (17,710 5,96¢ 20,97 491
$ 2446 $ (4559 $ (16,505 $ 6,70: $ 20,97 $  9,06:
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the six months ended June 30, 2010
(unaudited)

Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Other
Communications, Financing, Communications, Non-Guarantor
Inc. Inc. LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

Net Cash (Used in) Provided
Operating Activities $ 83 $ (a7¢) $ 62 $ 39 $ — $ 77
Cash Flows from Investing
Activities:
Capital expenditure — — (72 (119 — (18€)
Decrease in restricted cash and
securities, ne — — 2 2 — 4
Net Cash Used in Investir
Activities — — (70) (112) — (182
Cash Flows from Financing
Activities:
Long-term debt borrowings, n
of issuance cos — 613 — — — 613
Payments on and repurchases
of long-term debt, including
current portion and
refinancing cost (290 (599 (1) — — (890
Increase (decrease) due fron
affiliates, net 13€ 161 50 (349) — —
Net Cash (Used in) Provided
Financing Activities (152 17t 49 (349 — (277)
Effect of Exchange Rates on C:
and Cash Equivalen — — — (12) — (12
Net Change in Cash and Cz
Equivalents (23%) (0] (83) (75) — (399
Cash and Cash Equivalents at
Beginning of Periot 23€ 8 431 161 — 83€
Cash and Cash Equivalents at |
of Period $ 1 % 7 $ 34 3 86 $ — 442
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the six months ended June 30, 2009

(unaudited)
Broadwing
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Financial Other
Communications, Financing, Communications, Services, Non-Guarantor
Inc. Inc. LLC Inc. Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

(dollars in millions)
Net Cash (Used in) Provid¢

by Operating Activities $ 7)) $ (180) $ (1100 $ 1 $ 458 % — % 96
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Capital expenditure — — (62) — 97) — (159)

Decrease in restricted ca
and securities, nt — — 2 — 1 — 3
Net Cash Used in Investing Activiti — — (59) — (9€) — (15%)
Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Long-term debt borrowings, net
issuance cos! 2 274 — — — — 272
Payments on and repurcha
of lonc-term debt (351) — — — 2 — (359
Increase (decrease) due fri
affiliates, nel 424 (96) 18 1 (347) — —
Net Cash Provided by (Used i
Financing Activities 71 17€ 18 1 (349) — (81)
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash .
Cash Equivalent = = = = 2 = 2
Net Change in Cash and Ce
Equivalents — (2) (153) — 15 — (13¢)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning of Periot 67 10 58 — 13€ — 76€

Cash and Cash Equivalents
End of Perioc $ 67 $ 8 3 404 $ — 3 151§ — 3 63C

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the Level 3 Communications, Inc. and itbsidiaries (“Level 3” or the
“Company”) consolidated financial statements (idohg the notes thereto), included elsewhere hemeththe Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2009 filed with the Securities andHaxnge Commission.

This document contains forward looking statementsiaformation that are based on the beliefs ofagament as well as
assumptions made by and information currently abédl to the Company. When used in this documeatwibrds “anticipate”, “believe”,
“plan”, “estimate” and “expect” and similar exprasss, as they relate to the Company or its managgraee intended to identify forward-
looking statements. Such statements reflect theewtiviews of the Company with respect to futurergs and are subject to certain risks,
uncertainties and assumptions. Should one or nfdresse risks or uncertainties materialize, or $thomderlying assumptions prove
incorrect, actual results may vary materially fritose described in this document. For a more @etaiéscription of these risks and factors,
please see the Company’s Form 10-K for the yeae@icember 31, 2009 filed with the Securities Brchange Commission and Item 1A

in Part Il of this Form 10-Q.

Level 3 Communications, Inc., through its operasngsidiaries, is primarily engaged in the commatins business, with
additional operations in coal mining.

Communications Business

The Company is a facilities based provider of abdrmange of communications services. Revenue fonognications services is
recognized on a monthly basis as these servicggavaled. For contracts involving private line,weéengths and dark fiber services, Level 3
may receive up-front payments for services to biweled for a period of generally up to 20 yearstHese situations, Level 3 defers the
revenue and amortizes it on a straight-line baseatnings over the term of the contract.

Communications revenue consists of:

. Core Network Services
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. Wholesale Voice Services
. Other Communications Services

The first two categories of Communications reveareein different phases of the service life cycterf Other Communication
Services, requiring different levels of investmant focus, and providing different contributiongtie Company’s Communications Adjusted
EBITDA. Management of Level 3 believes that growtievenue from its Core Network Services is caitito the long-term success of its
communications business. The Company also beliewesst continue to effectively manage gross maogintribution from its Wholesale
Voice Services and the positive cash flows fronOitser Communications Services. Core Network Ses/ievenue represents higher margin
services and Wholesale Voice Services revenuegepte lower margin services. The Company beligvasttends in the communications
business are best gauged by looking at revenudstiierCore Network Services. Core Network Servinekides revenue from transport,
infrastructure, data, and local and enterpriseevommmunications services. Wholesale Voice Seniizgdades revenue from long distance
voice services, including domestic voice termimatimternational voice termination and toll freevdees. Other Communications Services
includes revenue from managed modem and its retat#procal compensation services and SBC Con8ewtices, which includes revenue
from the “SBC Master Services Agreement”, which whtained in the December 2005 acquisition of Willemmunications Group, LLC
(“WilTel”).

Core Network Services

The Company’s transport services include metrogiolénd intercity wavelengths, private line, Ethépréevate line, professional
services and transoceanic services. The Companfyastructure services include dark fiber and catmn services. Growth in transport and
infrastructure revenue is largely dependent oreased demand for bandwidth services and availalpiéat of companies requiring
communications capacity for their own use or inviing capacity as a service provider to their oostrs. These expenditures may be in the
form of monthly payments or up-front payments favate line, wavelength or dark fiber services. TTmmpany is focused on providing end-
to-end transport services to its customers to thireonnect customer locations with a private natw®ricing for end-to-end metropolitan
transport services have been relatively stableiriercity transport services, the Company continteeexperience pricing pressure for point-
to-point locations, particularly in locations wheréarge number of carriers co-locate their fdesit An increase in demand may be partially
offset by declines in unit pricing.

Data services primarily include the Company’s héglkeed Internet access service, dedicated Intecnesa (“DIA”) service, ATM
and frame relay services, IP and Ethernet virtuabge network (“VPN") services, content delivergtwork (“CDN”) services, and Vyvx
broadcast services. Level 3's Internet access@eivia high quality and high-speed Internet acsessce offered in a variety of capacities.
The Company’s VPN services permit businesses okagyto replace multiple networks with a singlesteeffective solution that greatly
simplifies the converged transmission of voice ggidand data. This convergence to a single platiambe obtained without sacrificing the
quality of service or security levels of traditio®aM and frame relay offerings. VPN services apgymit customers to prioritize network
application traffic so that high priority applicatis, such as voice and video, are not compromispdrformance by the flow of low priority
applications such as email.

The Company believes that one of the largest sewtiture incremental demand for the Compargore Network Services will t
from customers that are seeking to distribute tfegiture rich content or video over the Internetv&ue growth in this area is dependent on
the continued increase in usage by both enterpaisd consumers and the pricing environment. Arei@®e in the reliability and security of
information transmitted over the Internet and dexdiin the cost to transmit data have resulteddreased utilization of e-commerce or web
based services by businesses. Although the prioindata services is currently stable, the IP migickgenerally characterized by price
compression and high unit growth rates dependiron tipe type of service. The Company experiencex mdmpression in the high-speed IP
market in 2009 and expects that pricing for itshhgpeed IP services will continue to decline fa tamainder of 2010.

The Company, through its Level 3 Vyvx businessyjates transport services for the audio and videg@mming of its customers
over the Company’s fiber-optic network and via Bisge It uses the Company’s fiber-optic networkcarry live traditional broadcast and
cable television events from the site of the everthe network control centers of the broadcagiéthe event.

For live events where the location is not knowdivance, such as breaking news stories in remodtidns, the Company provides
an integrated satellite and fiber-optic networkdshservice to transmit the content to its customdost of Level 3 Vyvx’s customers for
these services contract for the service on an dweetvent basis; however, there are some custowtesshave purchased a dedicated point-to-
point service, which enables these customers tsiné programming at any time.
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The Company has developed content distributionieesthrough the acquisition of the Content DelMdetwork services business
(“CDN Business™)of SAVVIS, which it purchased in January 2007 fr8AVVIS, and the acquisition of Dublin, Ireland bds®ervecast Ltd
which it purchased in July 2007. The Company belethat the addition of the CDN Business withftitsrgy, broad portfolio of patents will
help the Company secure its commercial efforthéntteavily patented CDN market, in which a numbeompetitors have significant,
patented intellectual property. Level 3 believest hne of the largest sources of future incremeteaiand for communications services will
be derived from customers that are seeking toibliger their feature rich content or video over limernet.

The Company’s Core Network Services also includalland enterprise voice services. Local voiceisesvare primarily
components that enable other service providerslfgat business or consumer-ready voice productiseio end customers. Enterprise voice
services are business-grade voice services th&@dhgany sells directly to its business customers.

Beginning in the first quarter of 2010, Level 3 rifadl its revenue disclosure based on the mannahich certain customers are
classified within market-facing groups. The follogiprovides a discussion of its Core Network Sewievenue in terms of wholesale, large
enterprise and federal, mid-market, and Europeatomers.

Wholesale includes revenue from international amektic carriers, cable companies, wireless coregambice service
providers and the vast majority of former Conterarkét Group customers.

e Large Enterprise and Federal includes Fortune 8d0o¢her large enterprises that purchase commumnsaservices in a
manner similar to carriers, including financial\sees, healthcare and systems integrators, Fe@enarnment agencies and
academic consortia, plus certain large former Quntarkets Group customers, such as portal anatlseargine companies.

*  Mid-Market includes medium enterprises generallisme the Fortune 300, regional service providegstain academic
institutions and state and local governments.

e European is unchanged from the 2009 presentatiom ELiropean revenue includes the largest Europm@sumers of
bandwidth, including the largest European and ir@gonal carriers, large system integrators, ve@ice providers, cable
operators, Internet service providers, contentiderg, large enterprises, and government and eidacsectors.

The Company believes that the alignment of Corevidi Services around customer markets should atidovdrive growth while
enabling it to better focus on the needs of itdausrs. Each of these groups is supported by dedieanployees in sales and marketing.
Each of these groups is also supported by non-dtsticcentralized service or product managementawelopment, corporate marketing,
global network services, engineering, informatiechinology, and corporate functions, including lefjalince, strategy and human resources.

Core Network Services revenue by customer groupasdsllows (in millions):

Three Months Ended June 30 Six Months Ended June 30

2010 2009 2010 2009
Wholesale $ 342 347 $ 68E 70¢
Large Enterprise and Fede 14z 124 27¢ 25E
Mid-Market 14¢€ 161 297 32€
Europear 69 74 14C 144
Total Core Network Services $ 69¢ $ 70€ $ 1,40C $ 1,43¢

The classification of customers within each custogreup can change based upon sales team assignmanger and acquisition
activity by customers and other factors.

Wholesale Voice Services

The Company offers Wholesale Voice Services thgetdarge and existing markets. The revenue pialdot Wholesale Voice
Services is large; however, the pricing and margnesexpected to continue to decline over time r@salt of the new low-cost IP and optical-
based technologies. In addition, the market for 1&%eale Voice Services is being targeted by manypatitors, several of which are larger
and have more financial resources than the Company.
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Other Communications Services

The Company’s Other Communications Services aremaaervices that are not critical areas of empghasithe Company. Other
Communications Services includes revenue from mathagodem and its related reciprocal compensatiosces and SBC Contract Servic
which includes revenue derived under the SBC M&tevices Agreement that was obtained in the Widibgluisition. The Company and its
customers continue to see consumers migrate frerowmdand dial-up services to higher speed broadlisanvices as the narrow band market
matures. The Company expects ongoing declinesher@ommunications Services revenue similar totwalaa been experienced over the
past several years.

The Company receives compensation from other camiben it terminates traffic originating on thaseriers’ networks. This
reciprocal compensation is based on interconneetipaements with the respective carriers or ragsdated by the FCC. The Company has
interconnection agreements in place for the mgjafitraffic subject to reciprocal compensationabidition, a majority of the Company’s
existing reciprocal compensation revenue is astatiaith agreements that are in effect through 2018eyond. The Company continues to
negotiate new interconnection agreements or amemgne its existing interconnection agreements Vitial carriers as needed. The
Company earns reciprocal compensation revenue firoriding managed modem services, which are dedini
Communications Business Strategy and Objectives

The Company’s management continues to review #tiag lines of business and service offeringsdtednine how those lines of
business and service offerings enhance the Compéogtis on delivery of communications services rmeeting its financial objectives. To
the extent that certain lines of business, busigessps or service offerings are not considerdaetcompatible with the delivery of the
Company’s services or with meeting its financigleshtives, Level 3 may exit those lines of businasstop offering those services.

The Company is focusing its attention on the follayvwoperational and financial objectives:

e increasing sales by improving the customer expeééa increase customer retention and reducingmestchurn;

» growing Core Network Services revenue;

» achieving sustainable generation of positive céshd from operations in excess of capital expemdgyu

* reducing network costs and operating expenses;

e continuing to show improvements in Adjusted EBITR#a percentage of revenue;

» localizing certain decision making and interactiath its mid-market enterprise customers; includiegeraging its existing
network assets;

» completing the integration of acquired businesses;

* managing Wholesale Voice Services for margin cbotion;

e growing its content delivery network services; and

« refinancing its future debt maturities.

The Company’s management believes the introduciiorew services or technologies, as well as thiaéurdevelopment of existing
technologies, may reduce the cost or increaseumg!\s of certain services similar to those provithgd_evel 3. The ability of the Company
anticipate, adapt and invest in these technologyngés in a timely manner may affect the Companytisré success.

Level 3 will continue to evaluate acquisition opomities and could make additional acquisitionthia future.

The successful integration of acquired businesgedievel 3 is important to the success of Levéltse Company
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must continue to identify synergies and integratuaed networks and support organizations, whidéntaining the service quality levels
expected by customers to realize the anticipateéfiie of these acquisitions. Successful integnatibthese acquired businesses continues to
depend on the Company’s ability to manage theseatipes, realize opportunities for revenue growtisgnted by strengthened service
offerings and expanded geographic market coveegeto eliminate redundant and excess costs tpriegllize the expected synergies. If the
Company is not able to efficiently and effectivelyntinue to integrate the acquired businessesanatipns, the Company may experience
material negative consequences to its business)dial condition or results of operations.

The Company has taken steps to improve its exigtingesses and systems to reduce service actitaties and improve its service
management. The Company continues to realize ingonewts in its service management and believesihplemented sufficient
improvements in service activation capabilitiesnatch installation capacity to customer demandéuvices.

The Company has ongoing process and system develgpnork that is being implemented as part of thegration efforts that ha
and are expected to further improve the full speutof the customer experience, including servid¢ation and service management syst
and customer billing as well as various operati@fftiency improvements. The Company remains fedusn auditing and migrating
network inventory data from legacy applicationgt$acentral applications.

The Company continues to manage its cost struetutleoperating expenses carefully and to conceritsatapital expenditures on
those technologies and assets that enable the @gripéurther develop its Core Network Services egplace the decline in revenue and
earnings from Other Communications Services. Hitaoh, the Company’s operating results and finahcondition could be negatively
affected, if as a result of economic conditions:

*  customers defer or forego purchases of the Compagyvices;

e customers are unable to make timely payments t@€tmepany;

« the demand for, and prices of, the Company’s sesvige reduced as a result of actions by the Coytgpapmpetitors or
otherwise;

»  key suppliers upon which the Company relies ardlenm provide the Company with the materials edeefor its network on a
timely basis; or

the Company’s financial counterparties, insuranmoigers or other contractual counterparties a@leto, or do not meet,
their contractual commitments to the Company.

The Company has recently experienced shortagesriaiic types of equipment from its suppliers tkaffecting both the Company’s ability
to provision capacity on its network as well ag@asing intervals for installation of capacity framoviders of connections or capacity from
the Company'’s network to a customer location oepttarrier, which are referred to as “off-netThe Company believes that these challe
are industry wide. The Company has been manabesgtissues aggressively, working with its equigmeppliers and off-net vendors so
that the Company has the equipment and the oftaqgdcity needed to meet its customers’ requirements

The Company has also been focused on improvidgitslity, financial condition, and extending theatarity dates of certain debt.

In the second quarter of 2010, the Company redeathedithe outstanding $172 million aggregate gipal amount of its 10%
Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 for a price etull,016.70 per $1,000 principal amount of theeslus accrued and unpaid interest up
to, but not including the redemption date. The @any used cash on hand to fund the redemptioreskthotes, and recognized a loss on
extinguishment of approximately $4 million.

In the first quarter of 2010, Level 3 Financing;.lissued $640 million aggregate principal amodrit08 Senior Notes due 2018 i
private offering and repurchased $547 million af thtal outstanding 12.25% Senior Notes due 20it8gpily through a tender offer. The
remaining $3 million aggregate principal of the2B26 Senior Notes due 2013 was redeemed in March. 20t Company recognized a $55
million loss on the extinguishment of these notes.

Also in the first quarter of 2010, the Company id@E 11 million aggregate principal amount of it €onvertible Subordinated
Notes due 2010 that matured on March 15, 201@ddtition, in various transactions during the figgarter of 2010, the Company, or
subsidiaries, repurchased $3 million in aggregatejpal amount of 5.25% Convertible Senior Noteg @011, the remaining $3 million of
its 10.75% Senior Notes due 2011, and $2 milliogregate principal amount of 2.875% Convertible 8eNiotes due 2010. Repurchases
were made at prices to par ranging from 95% to 1009 Level 3 recognized a net loss on these rbpaes of less than $1 million.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, Level 3 Communicasipinc. issued $275 million aggregate principabant of 7%
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Convertible Senior Notes due 2015, Series B, fopneceeds of $274 million. In addition, during floerth quarter of 2009, the Company
repurchased approximately $73 million aggregateqgipal amount primarily consisting of convertibletes maturing in 2010, 2011 and 2012.

In the third quarter of 2009, $55 million of outsting aggregate principal of the Compan§% Convertible Subordinated Notes |
2009 matured and was repaid. In addition, durirgthiird quarter of 2009, the Company repurchasedoxpmately $39 million aggregate
principal amount of various issues of its convéetitbebt. The third quarter 2009 debt repurchasesisted of $11 million in 2010 maturities
and $28 million in 2011 maturities.

During the second quarter of 2009, Level 3 Finagcinc. (“Level 3 Financing”), a wholly owned subhisiry of the Company,
amended and restated its existing senior secuestit ¢acility to increase the borrowings througk tireation of a $280 million Tranche B
Term Loan that matures on March 13, 2014 with aerurinterest rate of LIBOR plus 8.50% per annuiith WIBOR set at a minimum of
3.00%.

During the second quarter of 2009, the Company axgbd approximately $142 million aggregate prinicgmaount of its 6%
Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2010 and apmabely $140 million aggregate principal amounttefd.875% Convertible Senior Notes
due 2010 for $200 million aggregate principal amafrthe Company’s 7% Convertible Senior Notes 230&5 and $78 million in cash, plus
accrued and unpaid interest.

During the second quarter of 2009, the Companyrodmsed approximately $301 million aggregate ppalcamount of various
issues of its convertible debt. The second qu&AeP debt repurchases consisted of $121 millid0®O maturities, $50 million in 2010
maturities, $106 million in 2011 maturities and $84lion in 2012 maturities.

In addition, during the second quarter of 2009,Gloenpany redeemed at par $13 million aggregateipahamount in 2010
maturities.

In the first quarter of 2009, the Company repureda®5 million aggregate principal amount of its 64nvertible Subordinated
Notes due 2009 and $1 million aggregate principadant of its 11.5% Senior Notes due 2010 at distotmthe principal amounts a
recognized a net gain on extinguishment of less $iamillion.

The Company will continue to look for opportunitiesimprove its financial position and focus its@arces on growing revenue and
managing costs for the communications business.

Coal Mining

Level 3, through its two 50% owned joint-ventureface mines, one each in Montana and Wyoming, sel$ primarily through
long-term contracts with public utilities. The lotgrm contracts for the delivery of coal estabtish price, volume, and quality requirements
of the coal to be delivered. Revenue under thedetrer contracts is generally recognized when isosthipped to the customer.

Critical Accounting Policies

Refer to Item 7 of the Company’s Annual Report onnfr 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 fiesription of the
Company’s critical accounting policies.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the FASB issued a new accountamgdsird that provides revenue recognition guidémcarrangements with
multiple deliverables. Specifically, the new stamtaequires an entity to allocate consideratiothatinception of an arrangement to all of its
deliverables based on their relative selling priteshe absence of the vendor specific objectiidence or third party evidence of the selling
prices, consideration must be allocated to thevdedbles based on management’s best estimate séllirgy prices. In addition, the new
standard eliminates the use of the residual mediiatiocation. This guidance is generally expedtedesult in revenue recognition for more
delivered elements than under the current rulegelL® elected to adopt this guidance prospectif@aiyew or materially modified agreeme
as of January 1, 2010. The adoption of this guidahid not have a material effect on the Compangfssolidated results of operations or
financial condition.

Results of Operations for the Three and Six Month&nded June 30, 2010 and 2009:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, Change June 30, June 30, Change
(dollars in millions) 2010 2009 % 2010 2009 %
Revenue
Communication: $ 89z $ 92¢€ (4)%$ 1,792 $ 1,88¢ (5)%
Coal Mining 16 16 0% 26 34 24)%
Total revenu 90¢ 947 (4)% 1,81¢ 1,92 (5)%
Costs and Expenses (exclusive of
depreciation and amortization
shown separately below
Cost of Revenu
Communication: 35¢ 37¢ (6)% 72¢ 76¢ (5)%
Coal Mining 16 16 0% 28 33 (15)%
Total Cost of Revenu 374 39t (5)% 757 802 (6)%
Depreciation and Amortizatic 222 22¢ (2)% 44¢ 45( 0%
Selling, General and
Administrative 33¢ 321 5% 681 65¢ 3%
Restructuring Charge 1 6 (83)% 1 7 (86)%
Total Costs and Expens 93¢ 95( (1)% 1,881 1,91¢ (2)%
Operating Income (Los! (28) 8 NM (69) 4 NM
Other Income (Expense
Interest incomi — 1 (100% — 2 (100%
Interest expens (14%) (152) (5)% (299 (29¢) (D)%
Gain (Loss) on extinguishments
debt, ne: (5) 14 NM (59 14 NM
Other, ne 9 12 (25)% 16 14 14%
Total Other Income (Expens (141 (125) 13% (337 (26%) 26%
Loss Before Income Taxt (169 (139) 27% (40€) (2649) 54%
Income Tax Expens — (1) (100% (1) 2 (50)%
Net Loss $ (169) $ (139 26% $ (407 $ (266) 53%

NM — Not meaningful
Communicationsrevenue consists of

1) Core Network Services includes revenue from trartspdrastructure, data, and local and enterpriiee communications
services.
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2) Wholesale Voice Services includes revenue from listance voice services, including domestic véécemination,
international voice termination and toll free sees.

3) Other Communications Services includes revenue framaged modem and its related reciprocal compenssgrvices and
SBC Contract Services, which includes revenue fileenSBC Master Services Agreement, which was obdhiin the
December 2005 acquisition of WilTel.

Communications revenue attributable to each ofetlsesvices is as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009
Communications Service
Core Network Services Reven $ 69¢ $ 70€ $ 1,40C $ 1,43¢
Wholesale Voice Services Rever 163 171 32¢€ 342
Other Communications Reven 30 49 64 112
Total Communications Reveni $ 89z ¢ 92¢ $ 1,792 $ 1,88¢

Comparisons of the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 to the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2009

Communications Revenualecreased 4% in the second quarter of 2010 compatbd second quarter of 2009 and decreased 5% ir
the six months ended June 30, 2010 compared tathe period of 2009. Contributing to this decréasgommunications revenue was a
decrease in the Company’s Core Network Serviced/dmolesale Voice Services revenue and is gendtadlyesult of macroeconomic
conditions driving increasing customer turnovethia Company’s business, usage declines, and custalakaying network investment
purchases or optimizing their own networks for caiminations services.

The Company experienced declines within Core Netv@arvices in the three and six months ended JOp2.0 compared to the
same periods of 2009, including data services, Mywadcast services, and local voice and enterpose services. The decrease in data
service revenue is primarily the result of macrawroic conditions causing customers to disconnec¢duce usage of the Company’s
internet access services. The decrease in Vyvxdbest services is primarily the result of macro@ooic conditions causing lower usage as
customers generally reduced the number of broadgastents they covered. The decrease in locakva enterprise voice services is
primarily the result of macroeconomic conditionsisiag lower voice usage. Partially offsetting tlee@ases in data services and voice
revenue were increases in infrastructure reventieeithree and six months ended June 30, 2010 cechpathe same periods of 2009. The
Company continues to experience strong demanchfi@structure services for complex nationwide sohg capacity in large markets.

The decrease in Wholesale Voice Services reventieithree and six month periods ended June 3@ @¥hpared to the same
periods in 2009 is primarily attributable to a deelin domestic and international voice terminatenvices and international voice services,
which was caused by pricing declines and lower esBagrtially offsetting the decrease in domestit iaternational voice termination rever
was an increase in toll free revenue. The Companyirtues to concentrate its sales efforts on miiimg incremental gross margins in the
30% range for these services. The Company expeetgaerience some volatility in revenue as a rasthis strategy.

Other Communications Revenue declined to $30 millind $64 million in the three and six months englete 30, 2010,
respectively, from $49 million and $112 milliontime three and six months ended June 30, 2009,atdggdg. The decrease is the result of a
decline in managed modem revenue as a result afofinued migration from narrow band dial-up seegito higher speed broadband
services by end user customers, especially in lagfeopolitan areas. The Company expects managddmoevenue to continue to decline
in the future due to an increase in the numbeub$eribers migrating to broadband services.

Reciprocal compensation revenue from managed madewices also declined in the three and six moatisled June 30, 2010
compared to the same periods of 2009 as a restiieafontinuing decline in demand for managed mosemices. The Company has
historically earned the majority of its reciprocaimpensation revenue from managed modem servitiesygh the Company continues to
generate a portion of its reciprocal compensatwemnue from voice services, which is reported withore Network Services revenue. To
extent the Company is unable to sign new intercoiiore agreements or signs new agreements or anesistsg agreements containing
lower rates, or there is a significant decline in
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the Company’s managed modem dial-up business, GrdtGtate regulations change such that carrieraatrrequired to compensate other
carriers for terminating ISP-bound traffic, recipabcompensation revenue may experience furthdindswver time.

Also contributing to the decrease in Other Commaitiinis revenue was lower SBC Contract Serviceswevas a result of the
migration of the SBC traffic to the AT&T network étthe satisfaction by SBC of its gross margin commant under the SBC Master Servi
Agreement in the first half of 2008. During the et quarter of 2008, the gross margin commitmertherSBC Master Services Agreement
was satisfied; however AT&T, Inc. (“AT&T"), which erged with SBC in 2005, continues to purchase sesvirom Level 3 under the SBC
Master Services Agreement as it continues to nedte services provided under the agreement tmitsnetwork facilities. The SBC Master
Services Agreement was an agreement between SRE&&emc. and WilTel and was obtained in the Wildequisition.

Coal mining revenue remained flat at $16 million in the threenths ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, and decrea$26 million in
the six months ended June 30, 2010 from $34 millicihe same period of 2009, primarily due to ardase in volume of tons mined
attributable to the expiration of certain long tgparchase contracts earlier in 2010.

Cost of Revenudor the communications business includes leasedaigp right-of-way costs, access charges, sadlinsponder
lease costs, and other third party costs directiibatable to the network, but excludes depresraind amortization and related impairment
expenses.

Cost of revenue for the communications business,@ercentage of communications revenue, was 4@4 5% in the three and six
months ended June 30, 2010, respectively, and Al#eithree and six months ended June 30, 2008 ctgely. The Company continues to
realize synergies from acquisitions as it has lzdse to eliminate some of the costs associatedduighicate circuits serving the same
markets. The corresponding decreases in Other Caogations Services revenue also contributed tdléheost of revenue as a percentag
revenue for the Communications business. The gnasgins for SBC Contract Services revenue are |dkgar the gross margins for Core
Network Services

Coal mining cost of revenue approximated 100% and 108% ofmagihg revenue in the three and six months endad 30, 2010,
respectively, and 102% and 97% in the three andhsiths ended in June 30, 2009, respectively. iitrease in coal mining cost of revenue
as a percentage of coal mining revenue in theHa#tof 2010 is the result of the volume of tonsed at locations with higher costs per ton.

Depreciation and Amortization expense decreased 2% to $223 million in the seqaader of 2010 from $228 million in the
second quarter of 2009 and decreased nominall$48 $illion in the six months ended June 30, 20t f$450 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2009. The decrease is primariipattible to the reduction in depreciation experssoaiated with shorter-lived fixed assets
becoming fully depreciated and the effect of fonetgirrency fluctuations.

Selling, General and Administrativeexpenses include salaries, wages and related te(irtiluding non-cash, stock based
compensation expenses), property taxes, travelranse, rent, contract maintenance, advertisingyeion expense on asset retirement
obligations and other administrative expensesirgglgeneral and administrative expenses alsodiechertain network related expenses such
as network facility rent, utilities and maintenamosts.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&% to $338 million in the second quarter of®6dmpared to $321 million in
the second quarter of 2009 and increased 3% to $@8an in the six months ended June 30, 2010 carag to $659 million in the six
months ended June 30, 2009. The increase is piyraanesult of higher employee compensation afated costs as the Company continued
to increase its sales, installation activities angport headcount during 2010. Included in sellgeneral and administrative expenses in the
three and six months ended June 30, 2010 were $tldnnand $30 million, respectively, and the thigad six months ended June 30, 2009
were $9 million and $25 million, respectively, aimcash, stock-based compensation expenses rédageants and expected bonus grants of
outperform stock options and restricted stock uenitd restricted stock shares.

Restructuring Chargesdecreased to approximately $1 million in the secpualter of 2010 compared to $6 million in the seto
quarter of 2009, as the Company had not initiatgdsignificant new workforce reduction plans. Dwgrithe second quarter of 2009, the
Company initiated a workforce reduction of approately 170 employees, or 3% of the Company’s tatghleyee base, and incurred a
restructuring charge of $6 million, all of whichated to the communications business.

Restructuring Charges decreased to $1 millionénsik months ended June 30, 2010 from $7 milliothénsix
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months ended June 30, 2009, primarily as a restiectiming of the Company’s workforce reductiastiaities.

The Company may experience further restructuriraggds in 2010 in connection with the possible rteaatljust its cost structure if
revenue performance is not satisfactory due tothaegaffects of the current economy or other reaséwlditional restructuring activities
could result in additional headcount reductions rhated charges.

Adjusted EBITDA , as defined by the Company, is net income (lassh the consolidated statements of operations befor
(1) income tax benefit (expense), (2) total otimenime (expense), (3) non-cash impairment chargésded within restructuring charges,
(4) depreciation and amortization expense and ¢B}gash stock compensation expense included wstling, general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statements of opesatio

Adjusted EBITDA is not a measurement under GAAP @&y not be used in the same way by other compaviisagement
believes that Adjusted EBITDA is an important pafrthe Companys internal reporting and is a key measure useddyagement to evalug
profitability and operating performance of the Ca@myp and to make resource allocation decisions. flamant believes such measurement is
especially important in a capital-intensive indystuch as telecommunications. Management alsoAgjaested EBITDA to compare the
Company’s performance to that of its competitors #meliminate certain non-cash and non-operat&ms in order to consistently measure
from period to period its ability to fund capitadgenditures, fund growth, service debt and detegrbionuses.

Adjusted EBITDA excludes non-cash impairment chargied non-cash stock compensation expense bedathgenmn-cash nature
of these items. Adjusted EBITDA also excludes ies¢income, interest expense and income tax b&egfiense), because these items are
associated with the Company’s capitalization andsteuctures. Adjusted EBITDA also excludes defien and amortization expense
because these non-cash expenses reflect the efffempital investments which management believesilstbe evaluated through cash flow
measures. Adjusted EBITDA excludes net other incempense) because these items are not related frimary operations of the
Company.

There are limitations to using non-GAAP financiaasures, including the difficulty associated witimparing companies that use
similar performance measures whose calculationsdifter from the Company'’s calculations. Additiolyalthis financial measure does not
include certain significant items such as inteinesbme, interest expense, income tax benefit (esggmepreciation and amortization expe
non-cash impairment charges, non-cash stock corapen®xpense and net other income (expense). fdiiEBITDA should not be
considered a substitute for other measures of diahperformance reported in accordance with GAAP.

Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financialestants provides a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITEA each of the Company’s
reportable operating segments.

Adjusted EBITDA for the communications business %289 million in the second quarter of 2010 comg@ace$230 million in the
second quarter of 2009 and $411 million in thensonths ended June 30, 2010 compared to $479 millittne same period of 2009. The
decrease in Adjusted EBITDA for the communicatibasiness is primarily attributable to the declinéghie Company’s revenue, partially
offset by a decrease in cost of revenue, in addtichigher selling, general and administrativeesges during the first half of 2010.

Interest Incomedecreased to less than $1 million in the secondeguaf 2010 from $1 million in the second quaté2009 and
decreased to less than $1 million in the six moetided June 30, 2010 from $2 million in the six therended June 30, 2009 primarily du
a decrease in the average returns on the Companvgstment portfolio, as well as a decrease iratrerage invested balance during the three
and six months ended June 30, 2010.

The Company invests its funds primarily in governirend government agency securities, money mauketsfand commercial
paper depending on liquidity requirements. The Camyfs investment strategy generally provides loyveids on the funds than would be
obtained on alternative investments, but reducesisi to principal in the short term prior to tedands being used in the Company’s
business.

Interest Expensedecreased 5% to $145 million in the second quaift2010 from $152 million in the second quarte2669.
Interest Expense decreased 1% to $294 millionersth months ended June 30, 2010 from $298 milliche second quarter of 2009. Intel
expense decreased as a result of lower averageshtates in 2010 as compared to 2009. The Coynpepects annual interest expense in
2010 to approximate $585 million based on the Comijseoutstanding debt as of June 30, 2010, theyrapat upon maturity of the $38
million aggregate principal amount of the 2.875%n@&rtible Senior Notes in July 2010, and the curieterest rates on the Company'’s
variable rate debt. See Note 8 of the Notes tosGlaated Financial Statements for additional infation on Level 3’s financing activities.
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Gain (Loss) on extinguishment of debt, netvas a loss of $5 million and a loss of $59 millinrthe three and six months ended
June 30, 2010, compared to a gain of $14 milliothethree and six months ended June 30, 2009 .lo8kaluring 2010 was related to a $4
million charge recognized as a result of the redeammf the Company’s 10% Convertible Senior Natae 2011 in May 2010 and a $55
million charge recognized in connection with the2B% Tender Offer and consent solicitation in Jap@810. The $14 million gain on the
extinguishment of debt in the three and six moetided June 30, 2009 consisted of a net gain ofiidmmas a result of the debt exchange
transaction completed in the second quarter of 200@Pa net gain of $7 million as a result of thbtdepurchase transactions completed in the
second quarter of 2009. See Note 8 of the Not&otwsolidated Financial Statements for more detagarding the Company’s financing
activities.

Other, net was $9 million in the second quarter of 2010 coragdo $12 million in the second quarter of 2009 &hé million in the
six months ended June 30, 2010 compared to $1bmiti the same period of 2009. Other, net is prilpaomprised of gains and losses
from the change in the fair value of certain defixainvestments, gains and losses on the salemperating assets, realized foreign
currency gains and losses and other income.

Income Tax Expenseawvas less than $1 million and $1 million in the thend six months ended June 30, 2010, respectiety$l
million and $2 million in the same periods in 20P8marily related to state income taxes.

The Company incurs income tax expense attributahilecome in various Level 3 subsidiaries, inclgdihe coal business, that are
required to file state or foreign income tax retuom a separate legal entity basis. The Companyat®gnizes accrued interest and penalties
in income tax expense related to uncertain taxfitene

Financial Condition - June 30, 2010

Cash flows used in operating activities, investiatjvities and financing activities for the six ntlos ended June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively are summarized as follows:

Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

(dollars in millions) 2010 2009 Change

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activiti $ 77 $ % $ (29

Net Cash Used in Investing Activitii (182) (15t (27)

Net Cash Used in Financing Activiti 277) (82) (19¢)

Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equi (12 2 (14
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equival $ (399 $ (139 $ (256

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities decreasefili®million in the six months ended June 30, 20d@gared to the same period in
2009. The decrease in cash provided by operatitingjtas was primarily due to an increase in thex@any’s net loss of approximately $141
million in the six months ended June 30, 2010 cargbéo the same period in 2009, partially offsetlijecrease in the use of working capital
and the $59 million adjustment related to the lmsslebt extinguishments recognized in the six noetided June 30, 2010. The loss on debt
extinguishments is included in the increase oflo&d, but is reflected in financing activities dwe iStatement of Cash Flows.

I nvesting Activities

Cash used in investing activities increased by$fifon in the six months ended June 30, 2010 caenbéo the same period of 20
primarily as a result of additional capital expeuarks, which totaled $186 million in the six mon#rgled June 30, 2010 and $158 million in
the same period of 2009.
Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities increased $196amiin the six months ended June 30, 2010 conmptyehe same period of 2009
as a result of an increase in debt repurchasesf metv issuances. See Note 8 of the Notes to tins@idated Financial Statements for more

details regarding the Company’s debt transactitivities.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company incurred a net loss of $407 milliothia six months ended June 30, 2010 and $266 milidhe same period of 2009.
The Company used $186 million for capital experdittand used $277 million for financing activitieghe six months ended June 30, 2010.
This compares to $158 million of cash used for gixpenditures and $81 million of cash flows usefinancing activities in the same
period of 2009.

Cash interest payments are expected to increagglglto $525 million in 2010 from the $517 millionade in 2009 based on current
debt outstanding, estimated interest rates on thepganys variable rate debt, expected continued execufidiability management initiative
and the financing transactions completed in ead02 Capital expenditures for 2010 are expectdmbtbigher than the $313 million in 2009
as the Company expects success-based capitaréagecin 2010. The Company invests in base capipanditures (estimated capital
required to keep the network operating efficiemtiy support new service development) with the reimgicapital expenditures expected to
be project based where capital is required to explae network prior to a specific customer reveapportunity or success-based, which is
tied to incremental revenue. As of June 30, 201® Gompany had long-term debt contractual obligatilcluding capital lease and
commercial mortgage obligations and excluding puemand discounts on debt issuance and fair valjustadents of approximately $39
million that mature in 2010, $199 million that megun 2011 and $298 million that mature in 2012e Tompany is reflecting the $67 million
commercial mortgage obligation as maturing in 284% elected to extend the maturity to 2015.

In early 2010, Level 3 Financing, Inc. issued $64ion aggregate principal amount of 10% Seniotééodue 2018 in a private
offering. In conjunction with a concurrent tendéieo and consent solicitation, the proceeds frois issuance were used to repurchase
$547 million aggregate principal amount of its B2@2Senior Notes due 2013. The Company also reddid #illion of its 6% Convertible
Subordinated Notes due 2010 that matured on MascRA10, repurchased the remaining $3 million ag@tes principal amount of the 12.2!
Senior Notes due 2013 and repurchased an addis@naiillion in various transactions throughout finst quarter of 2010.

Level 3 had $442 million of cash and cash equivalen hand at June 30, 2010. In addition, $12lionilbf current and non-current
restricted cash and securities are used to calaeroutstanding letters of credit, loterm debt, certain operating obligations of the @any
and certain reclamation liabilities associated il coal mining business. Based on informatiorilabie at this time, the Company believes
that its current liquidity and anticipated futumsb flows from operations will be sufficient to tuits business for at least the next twelve
months.

In July 2010, the Company repaid the remaining $8Bon aggregate principal amount of its 2.875%n@ertible Senior Notes upon
maturity.

The Company may elect to secure additional cajpittde future, at acceptable terms, to improvdidisdity or fund acquisitions. In
addition, in an effort to reduce future cash indegayments as well as future amounts due at nyaturio extend debt maturities, Level 3 or
its affiliates may, from time to time, issue nevbtjenter into debt for debt, debt for equity ostt&ransactions to purchase its outstanding
debt securities in the open market or through pelyanegotiated transactions. Level 3 will evaluatg such transactions in light of the
existing market conditions and the possible dikigffect to stockholders. The amounts involvedniy such transaction, individually or in the
aggregate, may be material.

In addition to raising capital through the debt aqdity markets, the Company may sell or disposxitting businesses, investme
or other non-core assets.

Consolidation of the communications industry magttwue. Level 3 will continue to evaluate consalida opportunities and could
make additional acquisitions in the future.

ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk
Interest Rate Ris

Level 3 is subject to market risks arising frommes in interest rates and foreign exchange rasesf June 30, 2010, the Company
had borrowed a total of $2.0 billion primarily umdeSenior Secured Term Loan due 2014 and Flo&atg Senior Notes due 2015, that bear
interest at LIBOR rates plus an applicable margmthe LIBOR rates fluctuate, so too will the irgsr expense on amounts borrowed under

the debt instruments. The weighted average inteaéston the variable rate instruments at Jun@BD), was approximately 4.1%.
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In March 2007, Level 3 Financing, Inc. entered itwto interest rate swap agreements to hedge tagesttpayments on $1 billion
notional amount of floating rate debt. The two ietd rate swap agreements are with different copatges and are for $500 million each.
The interest rate swap agreements were effectigimbieg in 2007 and mature in January 2014. Unidertérms of the interest rate swap
agreements, Level 3 receives interest paymentsilmaseolling three month LIBOR terms and pays iestiat the fixed rate of 4.93% under
one arrangement and 4.92% under the other. Leliab3lesignated the interest rate swap agreemeatsas$ flow hedge on the interest
payments for $1 billion of floating rate debt.

The remaining, or unhedged, variable rate debppf@imately $1 billion has a weighted averageregderate of 5.6% at June 30,
2010. A hypothetical increase in the weighted ayenrate by 1% point (i.e. a weighted average ri€690) would increase the Company’s
annual interest expense by approximately $10 mill&t June 30, 2010, the Company had $4.4 billexciuding fair value adjustments,
discounts and premiums) of fixed rate debt beaaimgeighted average interest rate of 8.9%. A dedfineterest rates in the future will not
benefit the Company with respect to the fixed dbt due to the terms and conditions of the indesttelating to that debt that would reqt
the Company to repurchase the debt at specifiadipres if redeemed early.

Indicated changes in interest rates are based pottgtical movements and are not necessarily itidecaf the actual results that
may occur. Future earnings and losses will be &by actual fluctuations in interest rates andifm currency rates.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate R

The Company conducts a portion of its businessiireacies other than the U.S. dollar, the currénayhich the Company’s
consolidated financial statements are reportedreSpondingly, the Company’s operating results cteléddversely affected by foreign
currency exchange rate volatility relative to th&ldollar. The Company’s European subsidiariegheséocal currency as their functional
currency, as the majority of their revenue and pases are transacted in their local currenciesofitjh the Company continues to evaluate
strategies to mitigate risks related to the eftédtuctuations in currency exchange rates, the gamy will likely recognize gains or losses
from international transactions. Changes in for@igmency rates could adversely effect the Compaapkerating results.

Iltem 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Disclosure controls and procedureéhe Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness
of the Company’s disclosure controls and proced@agslefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) uthdeBecurities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act”), as of June 300.2Based upon such review, the Chief Executivec®ffand Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controtsncedures are effective and are designed taetisat information required to be
disclosed by the Company in the reports it fileswomits under the Exchange Act is recorded, psazksummarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the Securities and ExgeaBiommission rules and forms. Disclosure contints procedures include, without
limitation, controls and procedures designed tamnthat information required to be disclosed bysaner in reports it files or submits under
the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicatétet€ompany’s management, including its princgadcutive officer and principal
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timelgdaisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Internal controls.There were no changes in the Company'’s internarabover financial reporting identified in connigt with the
evaluation required by paragraph (d) of ExchangeRAdes 13a-15 or 15d-15 that occurred during duosd quarter of 2010 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, the Company’s internal control o¥i@ancial reporting.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Iltem 1A Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth mistreport, you should carefully consider the fextdiscussed in Part litem 1A. Risl
Factors” in Level 3's Form 10-K for the year enddecember 31, 2009, which could materially affectéle3’s business, financial condition
or future results. The risks described in LevelBd%m 10-K are not the only risks facing the Compakdditional risks and uncertainties not
currently known to Level 3 or that it currently de®to be immaterial also may materially adverséigca Level 3's business, financial
condition and/or operating results. The Risk Facihocluded in the Company’s Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2009, have not
materially changed other than as set forth below.
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Level 3 has substantial debt, which may hinder itgrowth and put Level 3 at a competitive disadvantag.

Level 3's substantial debt may have important cqueaces, including the following:

» the ability to obtain additional financing for agsjtions, working capital, investments and capitabther expenditures
could be impaired or financing may not be availaliieacceptable terms;

*  asubstantial portion of Level 3's cash flows Wil used to make principal and interest paymentutstanding debt,
reducing the funds that would otherwise be avadldbt operations and future business opportunities;

e asubstantial decrease in cash flows from operatitigities or an increase in expenses could madificult to meet debt
service requirements and force modifications tarafens;

» Level 3 has more debt than certain of its competitwhich may place Level 3 at a competitive digadage; and
. substantial debt may make Level 3 more valblerto a downturn in business or the economy gédiger

Level 3 has substantial deficiencies of earningsoteer fixed charges of approximately $406 millfonthe six months ended
June 30, 2010. Level 3 had deficiencies of eamtngover fixed charges of $264 million for the sionths ended June 30, 2009, $617
million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 208854 million for the fiscal year ended DecembEr2008, $1.1 billion for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007, $742 million for the figear ended December 31, 2006, and $647 millionHe fiscal year ended December 31,
2005.

Level 3 may not be able to repay its existing debfailure to do so or refinance the debt could preva Level 3 from
implementing its strategy and realizing anticipatedprofits.

If Level 3 were unable to refinance its debt ordise additional capital on acceptable terms, L8isehbility to operate its business
would be impaired. As of June 30, 2010, Level 3 adggregate of approximately $6.3 billion of ldegn debt on a consolidated basis
including current maturities, premiums and discsunapital leases and its commercial mortgage appdoximately $15 million of
stockholders’ equity . Of this long-term debt, appmately $39 million is due to mature in the remag six months of 2010, approximately
$199 million is due to mature in 2011 and approxehe$298 million is due to mature in 2012, in eaalse excluding debt discounts,
premiums and fair value adjustments.

Level 3's ability to make interest and principalypgents on its debt and borrow additional fundsawofable terms depends on the
future performance of the business. If Level 3 dogshave enough cash flow in the future to maker@st or principal payments on its debt,
Level 3 may be required to refinance all or a péits debt or to raise additional capital. Leval@not be sure that it will be able to refinance
its debt or raise additional capital on acceptédlms.

Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibits filed as a part of this report are listedow.

10.1 Level 3 Communications, Inc. Stock Plan, effectiday 20, 2010 (incorporated by reference to ExHibitl to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMay 25, 2010}

10.2 Level 3 Communications, Inc. OSO Master Award Agreat (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2ht® Registrant’s
Current Report on Form-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMay 25, 2010}

10.3 Level 3 Communications, Inc. Amended Master Defeissuance Stock Agreement (incorporated by reéerém Exhibit 10.3 to
the Registrar's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMay 25, 2010}

10.4 Level 3 Communications, Inc. Master Deferred IsseaBtock Agreement for Non-Employee Directors (ipooated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s CuirfReport on Form 8-K filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on
May 25, 2010)

12 Statements Re Computation of Rai

31.1 Rule 13i-14(a)/15¢14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Offic
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31.2 Rule 13i-14(a)/15+14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Offic

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantciioBe906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiboB8e906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

101  The following materials from the Quarterly Repantieorm 10-Q of Level 3 Communications, Inc. for thearter ended June 30,
2010, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Repgrtanguage); (i) Consolidated Statements of Qfm®rs, (i) Consolidate
Balance Sheets, (iii) Consolidated Statement oh@dsws, and (iv) Notes to Consolidated Financitat&nents*

* Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the dattive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deenwdiled or part of a
registration statement or prospectus for purpos&ections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1%88amended, are deemed not
filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securiied Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otheasgseot subject to
liability under those section

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Dated: August 3, 2010 /sl Eric J. Mortense
Eric J. Mortensel
Senior Vice President, Controll
and Principal Accounting Office
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STATEMENTS RE COMPUTATION OF RATIOS

STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNING TO FIXED CHARGES

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
(unaudited)

Six Months
Ended June 30,

Fiscal Year Ended

Exhibit 12

(In millions) 2010

2009

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

Loss from Continuing Operations Before

Taxes $ (40e) $ (264 $ 617 $ 3129 $ (1,169 $ (810 $ (715)
Interest on Debt, Net of Capitalized Inter 294 29¢ 59t 57C 60¢ 67C 543
Amortization of Capitalized Intere — — — 48 68 68 68
Portion of rents deemed representative of

the interest factor (1/: 34 34 68 68 63 44 25
(Losses) Earnings Available for Fixed

Charges $ (78) $ 68 $ 46 $ 374 $ (42¢) $ (28) $ (79
Interest on Dek $ 294 % 29¢ % 59t $ 57¢ $ 60 $ 67C $ 542
Preferred Dividend — — — — — — —
Interest Expense Portion of Rental Expe 34 34 68 68 63 44 25
Total Fixed Charge $ 328 $ 332 % 662 $ 63 $ 672 $ 714 $ 56¢
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg — — — — — — —
Deficiency $ (406) $ (264) $ (617 $ (2649 $ (1,100 $ (7142) $ (647)




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS*

I, James Q. Crowe, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Form 10-Q of Level 3 Commuti@ss, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsttéde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgy; or caused such internal control over finahaaorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sld&ire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period courydhis report based on s
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registrant’s internal control over finaceporting; and

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internalrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢ofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 3, 201

/sl James Q. Crow

James Q. Crow
Chief Executive Office

* Provide a separate certification for each priatigxecutive officer and principal financial officef the registrant. See Rules 13a-14(a) and
15d-14(a).




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS*

I, Sunit S. Patel, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Form 10-Q of Level 3 Commuti@ss, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsttéde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgy; or caused such internal control over finahaaorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sld&ire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period courydhis report based on s
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registrant’s internal control over finaceporting; and

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internalrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢ofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 3, 201

/s/ Sunit S. Pate

Sunit S. Pate
Chief Financial Officel

* Provide a separate certification for each priatigxecutive officer and principal financial officef the registrant. See Rules 13a-14(a) and
15d-14(a).




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Form 10-Q of Level 3 Comnuations, Inc. (the “Companyfpr the three and six months ended June 30, 20filzd:
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, James Q. Crowe, Chiecutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 26Q&;

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of
operations of the Company.

/sl James Q. Crow
James Q. Crow

Chief Executive Office
August 3, 201(




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Form 10-Q of Level 3 Comnuations, Inc. (the “Companyfpr the three and six months ended June 30, 20filzd:
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), |, Sunit S. Patel, Clkimancial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 26Q&;

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Sunit S. Pate

Sunit S. Pate

Chief Financial Officel
August 3, 201(




